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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(In Thousands of Pesos)

Consolidated Entity
2007 2006 2005
FOR THE YEAR
Revenues from Petroleum Operations 168,952 147,043 78,739
Investment Income 8,280 5,797 38,282
Interest and Other Income 24,385 11,458 16,518
Net [ncome {Loss) 28,056 (175,7606) 2,745
AS OF END OF YEAR
Total Assets 1,534,759 1,552,453 2,293,019
Current Liabilities 132,948 176,404 496,235
Noncurrent Liabilities 3,472 1,043 660
Net Worth 1,398,339 1,375,006 1,796,124
Authorized Capital 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000
Issued and Subscribed Capital 1,534,950 1,534,944 1,534,944

COUR COVER

Steady jet of pressurized seawater suppresses the heat
of burning crude during the Galoc 3 well's recent

¢ ean up flow. Discovered in 1981, putting the Galoc
Field into production has now become a reality.

Photo credits: Galoc Production Company




LETTERTO STOCKHOLBERS

DEAR FELLOW STOCKHOLDERS:

e are pleased
to submit your
company’s Financial

and Operations Report for the
calendar year ended December 31,
2007.

Financial Malters

Your company’s revenues
continued its upward trend in
2007, growing by 23% to P201.6
million from P164.3 million in
2006. Revenue from petroleum
operations, which comprised 84%
of the total, grew 15% to P169.0

million mainly due to the sustained

upsurge in crude prices and partly
due 10 a slight increase in oil
production. Your company also realized a non-recurring
gain of P18.9 million from the sale of an unutilized
portion of our condominium office, the proceeds from
which was used 1o retire a portion of our debt. Equitized
income from our investment in Penta Capital increased
by 43% to P8.3 million on account of the higher level of
profit in 2007.

Total costs and expenses dropped by almost 50% to
P172.1 million this year from P337.4 million in 2006.
The major factor behind the decline was the P195.0
million loss which we booked in 2006 arising from
the sale of your company’s shareholdings in EDSA
Properties Holdings, Inc. (EPHI), which made possible
the retirernent of a major portion of our interest-bearing
loans. As a result, the level of interest expense decreased
by 29% to P16.4 million in 2007. However, petroleum-
related operating expenses and general overhead went up
by almost 30% 10 P155.1 million mostly due to high fuel
costs and increased charter rates for vessels and aircraft
employed in our petroleum operation.

After sustaining a relatively substantial loss in 2006
due to the loss from the sale of our EPHI investment, your
company successfully returned to profitability in 2007
with a net income of P28.0 million. We are confident that
the succeeding years will see much better levels of revenue
and profits for your company as new petroleum projects
come on stream as discussed in the succeeding part of this
report.

Your company's total assets stood at P1.53 billion as
of end-2007, slightly lower than the year-ago level of P 1.55
billion. However, there were some notable changes within
the various asset components in the balance sheet. The
combined balance of receivables and advances went down

Annual Report 2007

by #48.7 million in 2007 mainly
due to the conversion of these
receivables into shares of stock of
one of your company’s publicly
listed affiliates. This conversion
adds a measure of liquidity into
your company’s assets due o the
ready marketability of the shares.
In consonance with the mandate
earlier given 1o management (o
consider divesting certain non-
oil assets to bring down your
company’s debt level, we sold our
shareholdings in Anglo Philippine
Holdings Corporation  (Anglo)
to settle around P44.0 million
of interest bearing obligations.
costs

Deferred oil
increased by P32.5 million on account of your company’s
purchase of 100% of the outstanding capital stock of
Phoenix Gas and Oil Exploration Company {P’GO) in
May 2007. The details of this acquisition are discussed in
the succeeding parn of this letter.

Qur continuing efforts to reduce your company’s
indebtedness is reflected in the liabilities section of the
balance sheet, which shows that total liabilities stood
at P136.4 million as of year-end 2007, P41.0 million
lower than the previous year's level. Two years ago, your
company’s total debt amounted to almost P500.0 million.
With a much improved revenue outlook for 2008 due the
expected start-up of Galoc oil production by mid-year,
we are confident that your company will be able to
retire all its interesi-bearing obligations before the end of
the year.

Total stockholders’ equity amounting to P 1.4 billion
as of end-2007 was P23.3 million higher than in 2006
on account of the net income generated during the year
which was partially offset by a P5.0 million increase in
the valuation reserve pertaining 1o our remaining listed
stock investmenits.

exploration

As previously mentioned, your company purchased
in May 2007 the outstanding capital stock of Phoenix Gas
and Oil Exploration Company (PGO) for U$$680,000 or
P32.6 million based on the prevailing exchange rate at that
time. This acquisition was an important strategic move
on our part since PGO has outstanding equity interests
in Service Contracis (SC} 6B and 14 and is a carried
interest party in SC 64, in which areas your company is
also involved. As part of the transaction, we also acquired
P32.0 million worth of cost recovery account in SC 6B
and i4. The immediate positive effect of this decision is
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that your company now enjoys a higher revenue share
in the currently producing Nido and Matinloc oilfields.
Additionally, we will benefit from enhanced revenue
sharing from Galoc and petentially in Octon under
SC GA.

Your company held a special stockholders’ meeting
on January 16, 2008 in which two specific resolutions
were approved. The first resolution involved a change in
the company’s primary business purpose, from that of
a diversified holding company to petroleum exploration
and development. It will be recalled that in 1989 when
your company's diversified business interests included
investments in property development, mining, financial
services, manufacturing and petroleum exploration
and development, its primary business purpose was
amended to that of a diversified holding company while
retaining petroleum and mineral exploration as one of
its secondary purposes. With the divestment of most of
our non-oil assets and the shift in our corporate focus
back to your company’s original purpose when it was
incorporated in 1969, the change in the primary business
purpose as approved in the special stockholders’ meeting
was warranted,

The other resolution involved an increase in your
company’s authorized capital from P1.55 billion to P2.0
billion to pave the way for 1-for-4 stock rights offering
which we plan to implement towards the middle of 2008.
The funds to be raised from the offering will be utilized
mainly to pay for your company’s share in the projected
cost of the Sulu Sea well drilling under SC 41 scheduled
in July 2008. Another portion of the proceeds will cover
our share in the first month operating expense budget
for the Galoc Project prior to the commencement of
production, as well as in costs related to certain studies
to be undertaken in preparation for the possible second
phase development of the Galoc field. The remaining
funds will be earmarked for debt repayment and expenses
related to the rights offering.

Petroleum Operations

The Nido and Matinloc fields produced an aggregate
of 184,248 barrels of crude in 2007, slightly higher than
the previous year’s output. However, the average selling
price of US$64.23 per barrel was 15% higher than the
average price in 2006. Despite higher operating costs in
2007 brought about by the rise in fuel prices and increased
charter rates, our petroleum operations continued to
improve its level of profitability due to the buoyanit crude
prices in the world market. We were thus able to not only
maintain, but also improve, our operating cash flows the
surplus of which was distributed among our partners.

Our facilities a1 Nido and Matinloc are already more
than twenty years old, and while we continue to set aside

funds for regular upkeep and maintenance, the overall
safety of our personnel and integrity of the structures
is one of our primary concerns. In this regard, we have
recently commissioned an upgraded fire deluge system at
Matinloc. We also conducted topside inspections of the
production platforms and have taken immediate steps
to institute remedial action where needed. We likewise
contracted an expert team to perform an underwater
survey and inspection of the facilities in order wo pinpoint
areas where additional corrective measures might be in
order. As of this writing, the survey was in progress, the
resulis of which are expected by the middle of 2008.

As part of our continuing program (o protect the
environment, we engaged the services of another group
to survey and monitor the vicinity of our operations in
offshore Palawan in order to determine the impact of
our operations on the surrounding areas. We are pleased
to report that the recently released results of the study
showed that our activities have had no significant adverse
effect on the marine environment. However, 1o prepare
for any eventuality, we purchased a subsurface safety valve
as well as an cil spill boom which could be deployed if
necessary 10 conlain any major oil spillage. We have
likewise scheduled for plugging the dormant Pandan well
in order to avert the possibility of oil leaking from the
underwater flow lines.

while our production operations at Nido and
Matinloc continue to be economically viable based on the
prevailing price and cost structure as well as production
volume, we realize that the oil reserves will be eventually
depleted and that the wells will have to be plugged and
the facilities decommissioned in accordance with good
oilfield practices. As a prudent operator we have thus
started to set aside for this purpose, with approval from
our partners, a portion of our surplus funds to cover this
future obligation. We would like to note however that
these contributions to the P&A fund are cost recoverable
expenditures.

The Galoc Project under the operatorship of
Galoc Production Company (GPC) continued to make
substantial progress in its development program for
the oilfield. The Galoc 3 and 4 production wells were
successfully drilled within the last quarter of 2007 up to
the early part of lanuary 2008. The data gathered from
the drilling and from the subsequent flow tests conducted
on both wells produced better than expected results on
certain important parameters such as reservoir thickness,
sand quality and well pressure. This has given way to
the upgrading of the oil reserve estimate and the strong
probability of higher and better sustained production
flow rates when the wells are produced.

Following the demobilization and release of the
drillship “Energy Searcher” in early March 2008, the

The Philodrill Corporation
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construction ship "Lewek Champion” arrived at the
project site for the installation of the subsea mooring
and riser system, which was completed before the end
of the month. With the installation of more than 1,200
tons of equipment on the seabed 290 meters below the
sea surface, the hook-up of the facility to the floating
production, storage and offloading (FPSO} vessel
“Rubicon Intrepid” would have proceeded immediately.
However, a dispute arose between GPC and the owners of
the FPSO relating to terms of payment and the pending
certification of the FPSO, causing an extended delay in
the vessel’s mobilization and availability at the project
site. The situation was aggravated by the deterioration of
weather conditions at the area.

As of this writing, the disputes involving the FPSO
had been resolved and the vessel has arrived at the site
awaiting calmer seas for the start of the connection to
the production flow lines. On the assumption that there
would be no further delays, first oil is expected by early
June 2008 with the initial shipment expected towards the
end of the month. The portion of the crude production
owned by GPC and the Filipino partners including
your company will be marketed by Vitol, the majority
shareholder of GPC and the largest independent crude
trading company in the world. After the production start-
up, the project will underge a maximum of six months
extended production test (EPT) during which all revenues
will be applied towards recovery of current operating
expenses and project development costs. Your company
will start receiving its share of the Galoc oil revenues after
the EPT which in our calculation, based on prevailing
crude prices and expected flow rates, would only take
between two and three months.

The contractual and operational delays experienced
in the implementation of the Galoc development
program has resulted in a relatively substantial increase
in the project cost, from the original US$$86.4 million to
around U18$118.0 million as of this time. Under the terms
of the farm-in agreement, your company will be carried
through this budget overrun which is not expected to have
a significant negative impact on the project’s economic
viability in view of the high level of crude prices and the
favorable prognosis on the recoverable oil reserves and
expected production flow rates.

GPC has put forward a proposal to undertake the
second phase of the Galoc Project, which is aimed at
accessing additional reserves and augmenting the crude
output from the present development, With a projected
cost of between US$120.0 to US$140.0 million, GPC has
offered to put together external financing for the project,
with an indicative 35% equity share for the partners. Your
company is studying this proposal. In the meantime, we
have agreed to participate in a prefeasibility study costing
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L1S$3.0 million to be commissioned by GPC. The decision
on whether to proceed with Phase 2 is expected before the
end of 2008.

Your company had a 6.4% post-farmout participating
interest in the Galoc Project. Following our acquisition of
PGO in May 2007 as discussed earlier in this report, our
equity has increased to 7.02%.

In SC 6A, we reported last vear that we have farmed
out this block to Virol with your company retaining a post-
farmout participating interest of over 13%. Preparatory to
its evaluation of the various prospects in the block, Viiol
assembled a comprehensive database over the contract
area, including the processed 3D seismic data under
the custody of Western Geco. The preliminary results
of Vitol's geologic and geophysical evaluation appear
promising, and we expect to be provided with a clearer
picture towards the middle of this year. The northern
part of the block which includes the large Barselisa
Prospect will most probably be the focus of Vitol's future
exploration thrust.

The potential development of the Octon field is still
under serious consideration, although the more attractive
economics forthe project appear to be ajoint development
scenario with Galoc instead of a stand-alone proposition.
Octon’s viability is expected to be further enhanced once
a decision to proceed with Phase 2 Galoc development is
reached by the end of this year.

There are other areas within 8C 6 and 14, such as
West Linapacan, Cadlao and Bonita, which have received
farm-in offers and were in varying stages of finalization al
this writing. Your company has different levels of equity
in these areas and we continue to look forward to the
successful conclusion of the farm-out negotiations so that
the necessary exploration and development activities could
be undertaken for the benefit of the participating partners.

In the Sulu Sea area under SC 41, the operator Tap
Qil completed a 750 square kilometer 3D seismic data
acquisition in mid-2007 in compliance with its farm-in
commitment. Following processing and evaluation of the
seismic survey results, Tap Oil announced its intention to
drill two back-to-back wells towards the middle of 2008.
In this regard, Tap Oil is preparing for the mobiiization
of the drilling rig possibly by July, and is also preparing
the ranking sequence of the top four prospects identified
based on the 3D seismic data acquired in 2007.

In connection with the planned drilling, Tap Oil has
submitted for approval by the SC 41 partners the budget
for the two wells, the first of which will be a commitment
well while the second one will be an option well. Your
company will be carried free in the drilling of the first well
but will have 1o pay for its share in the cost of the second
well based on our 3.4% participating interest. On a tested
basis, the cost of this well is placed at approximately
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LiS$50.0 million of which our potential share would be
around US$1.7 million or about P70.0 million based on
the current exchange rate. Your company believes in the
favorable potential of the Sulu Sea area for hydrocarbon
generation. Accordingly, we have made a decision to raise
the necessary funds to cover our prospective share in the
drilling cost by way of a stock rights offering which we
mentioned earlier on.

With regard to our interest in the onshore Mindoro
area under SC 53, we previously reported that we had
farmed out the area w Laxmi Organic Industries lid.
of Thailand which agreed 1o carry the Filipino partners
through the cost of one mandatory well. However, in June
2007, Laxmi announced its intention 1o withdraw from
the block and sought the approval of the Department
of Energy for the extension of the deadline for the
implementation of the committed work program in order
to search for an acceptable substitute farming in party
to assume Laxmi’s obligation. Subsequently, 11.5.-based
Pitkin Petroleum offered 1o assume Laxmi's interest and
the operatorship of the block by committing 10 a US$3.0
million seismic program. Pitkin Petroleum’s proposal is
presently awaiting approval by the Department of Energy
(DOE).

Regarding the deepwater project in offshore Palawan
formerly under GSECs 83/86 known as the SWAN Block,
the consortium is seeking to resolve the controversy
arising from the DOE’s awarding of GSEC 57 and 58
to PNOC-EC whose coverage overlapped the acreage
of GSECs 83/86 over which the SWAN consortium had
a preceding SC application. A proposal has been put
forward to PNOC-EC to swap around US§$23.0 million of
the SWAN Block’s cost recovery pool and a portion of your
company’s participating interest in the West Linapacan
Block of SC 14 in exchange for a certain amount of carried
interest in GSEC 57 and 58. This proposal remains under
consideration by PNOC-EC. While we would prefer to
resolve this issue in an amicable manner, your company
together with our partners intends to pursue through legal
means, if necessary, our rightful claim over this area.

Other Investments

Your company’s remaining major non-oil investments
consists of equity holdings in Pema Capital Investment
Corporation, Penta Holdings Corporation, and Atas
Consolidated Mining and Development Corporation. The
Penta Capital group’s main line of business is financial
services which include investment banking, financing and
money market operations. Penta Capital has a good track
record of profitability our share of which is equitized in
our books. This investment does not pose any drain on the
resources of your company. We appointed Penta Capital
as underwriter for our forthcoming rights offering.

Auas has a copper mine at Toledo, Cebu and a nickel
mining operation in Palawan. The Toledo copper mine
which used to be the largest in Asia is now in the final
stages of rehabilitation after having been shut down
since 1994 due to flooding and low metal prices. Mining
operations are expected to resume within the second half
of 2008.

While your company’s business focus has returned
to oil and gas exploration, we still consider it as a prudent
policy to maintain a certain amount of investment in
other business sectors as long as these invesuments
contribute to the profitability of your company and do
not divert resources away from our core business. Qur
recent experience has shown that these investments
provide an important source of funds when needed in
our operations.

Summary and Qutlook

The year 2007 saw many positive developments
affecting your company. In terms of financial results, we
have witnessed a return to profitability with a modest net
income generated during theyear. Our financial condition
has improved significantly with a very manageable debt
level which we intend to further bring down this year.
Qur petroleum projects have steadily moved forward with
a minimal amount of expenditure outlays on our part.
We expect to start receiving our share in the Galoc Project
revenues towards the last quarter of this year, after the
completion of the EPT. The relatively sizeable revenues
that your company stands to generate from this project
would allow us to resume dividend distributions in the
near future.

We maintain an optimistic outlook for the future,
with many of our oil projects undergoing additional
exploration work and possibly development over the next
one or two years. The record levels being attained by crude
prices in the world market may not be favorable for the
global economy, but your company and its shareholders
certainly stand to benefit from the additional revenues
that this will create.

We take this opportunity once more to express our
profound gratitude to our shareholders, directors, officers
and staff, for their continuing support, confidence,
guidance and dedication. With our combined effort and
with the grace of our Lord, we hope o realize our shared
vision of continued growth and profitability for your
company.

C?E( .
ALFREDO C. RAMOS
Chairman and President

May 19, 2008

The Phitodrill Corporation
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1.0 SERVICE CONTRACT NO. 14 (Nido and Matinloc
Production Blocks)

Operations Review

The combined oil production from the Nido and
Matinloc Fields totaled 184,248 barrels in 2007, an increase
of 1.6% from the fields’ combined output of 181,401 barrels
in 2006. In terms of their individual performance, the drop
in the Nido field output, largely due to the longer time of
waiting for an available cargo vessel, was compensated by an
increase in the Matinloc production.

The consertium completed a total of fifteen (15)
shipments from the two fields in 2007, all with Pilipinas
Shell Petroleum Corporation (Shell). Both fields are
currently being produced under a new one-year crude oil
sales agreement with Shell signed last January 29, 2008. The
consortium is committed to deliver to Shell a nominated
volume of 200,000 barrels of crude, subject to ten percent
(+/- 10%) operational tolerance. Earlier, in November 2007,
the consortium renewed its contract for carriage with Delsan
Shipping for the transport and delivery of the Nido crude to
the Shell refinery in Batangas.

PHILODRILL contintted to implement projects aimed
at sustaining economic levels of production and mitigating
operational hazards at the fields. In April 2007, Leistritz of
Germany started fabrication of a 3-phase pump system that

will be installed at the Nido B wells to boost production.
The new pump unit had since been fabricated, shipped and
installed at the field in September 2007. An engineer {rom
the fabricating company will commission the pump unit by
early 2008.

Over at the Matinloc Field, the new fire deluge system
for the Matinloc Platform was completed in the 4th quarter
and is operational already, although on manual mode.
Fabrication of the control panel, a requisite to fully automate
the system, is presently ongoing.

In order 1o maintain safe and environment-friendly
operations, the SC 14 Nido and Matinloc Consortia
approved the implementation of a comprehensive program
for environment and operations monitoring and facilities
maintenance and repair. In late 2007, an independent team
was commissioned to study, review and conduct surveys
on pollution and marine wildlife in the area. Likewise,
facilities inspection and assessment studies that will look at
the integrity of the existing subsea and topside production
facilities are also programmed for implementation in 2008,
The ManCom has programmed the underwater inspection
of the Nido and Matinloc facilities during the first semester
of 2008 at a cost of USD 600,000. [n addition, it has set a
budget of USD 300,000 for the plugging and abandonment
of the Pandan, Libro and North Matinloc wells sometime 3rd
quarter 2008.

\ . .'E‘é?"t P

Matintoc Plotform and service fugboat MT Harpoen

Annval Report 2007

.

THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION 5




PETROLEUM PROJECTS

2007 Crude Oil Production Summary

(in barrels)

Nido | Matinloc | 2007 Total | 2006 Total
January 0 7,868 7,868 18,427
February 12,288 8,774 21,062 18217
March 12,494 7,565 20,059 15,960
April 11,980 7,536 19,516 0
May 1,152 10,764 11,916 5072
June 11,843 7a21 18,964 23,194
July 12,542 6,272 18,814 19,309
August 0 4,192 4,192 17,874
September 12,678 5,990 18,668 5757
October 12612 5,290 17,902 19,690
November 0 4,458 4,458 19,451
December 12,536 8,293 20,829 18,450
Total 100,125 84,123 184,248 181,401

2.0 SERVICE CONTRACT NO. 14 C-1 (Galoc)

Galoc Development Drilling

During the first quarter of 2007, block operator
Caloc Production Company (CGPC) continued with their
preparations for the Galoc development drilling program.
Initially scheduled for the third quarter 2007, the drilling
campaign schedule further slipped as the drilling rig
availability had been moved back several times due to delays
in its prior drilling commitments, As a result, the drilling
rig “Energy Searcher” would only become available to
GI’C by first week of October 1o drill the programmed two
horizontal development wells. While waiting for the rig, all

the remaining contracts for facilities and services have been
finalized. In addition, GPC entered into a Crude Agency
Agreement with Vitol Asia Pte Ltd. (Vitol) for the marketing
of their share of the Galoc production and offered the same
marketing arrangement to the other partners including
PHILODRILL. The Filipino partners subsequently signed
up with GPC 10 have Vitol market their share of the crude
production as well.

In March 2007, a drilling consultant for GPC conducted
a review and sampling of the Galoc and Ccion cores stored
at the DOE Energy Data Center as part of the operator’s drill
mud optimization and formation damages studies. This
was followed in May 2007 by a comprehensive review by an
expert sedimentologist of all available core and rock materials
to verify existing facies descriptions and interpretations vis-a-
vis the GP'C’s latest facies model for the Galoc Clastic Unit
reservoir. Both studies were envisaged to greatly contribute to
the success of the Galoc development drilling campaign.

The first phase of the Galoc development will involve the
drilling of a deviated pilot well in to the southern portion of
the reservoir prior to the drilling of 2 horizontal production
wells. Drilling will follow a batch program whereby the top
holes of the production wells will be drilled prior to the pilot
hole and horizontal wells, As planned, the Pilot Hole will
be drilled from the Galoc-4 location w0 confirm potential
reserves in the southern sector of the field. Core and fluid
samples, wireline logs and subsurface measurements from
the pilot hole are expected to provide critical reservoir quality
information for optimum field development.

The drilling rig finally arrived at the Galoc location on
October 4, 2007. GPC spudded the Galoc-3 “1op hole” on
October 7, 2007 in water depths of 304.5 meters {999 feet).
After drilling the 17%-inch section of the well to a depth

Drliship "Energy Searcher” flares crude oil during Galoc-3 §T1 clean-up flow.

The Philedrill Corporation
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of 1,048 meters {3,438 feet), the 30-inch and 13 3/8-inch
casing were set, the wellhead latched, and the rig moved
to the Galoc-4 location. All depths are true vertical depths
measured from the drill deck.

GPC spudded the “top hole” of the Galoc-4 on October
14, 2007. The Pilot Hole was drilled at this location. The
appraisal activities undertaken in the pilot hole were
completed and the well plugged back to the 13 3/8-inch
casing shoe on November 11, 2007. The pilot hole confirmed
both reservoir properties and presence of hydrocarbons as
anticipated in the approved Galoc Plan of Development.
Some of the encouraging results from the pilot hole are the
following:

+ Qil saturation was higher than expected

+ Observed potosity and permeability in the Roo-1

Channel increased

* Penetrated some 70 meters of high sand content

formation

+ Some 20 meters of the 35 m oil column intersected is

a single sand body - the thickest sand development
seen in the field thus far

+ Recoverable reserves in the Roo-1 Channel are likely

to increase.

Following the completion and P & A of the pilot hole,
GPC kicked off the 12%-inch hole section of the Galoc-4
well at 1,017 meters measured depth (MD) just below the
shoe on November 12, 2007. The well reached its designated
total depth of 4,411 meters MD (approx. 2,206 meters TVD)
on December 4, 2007. Subsequently, the 5.5 inch pre-drilled
liner was set and the well temporarily suspended.

Work on the Galoc-3 production well re-commenced
on December 9, 2007 with the installation of the blowout
preventer stack on the marine riser. The well stood at a depth
of 1,048 meters when it was suspended on October 13, 2007
to pave the way for the drilling of the Galoc-4 “top hole” and
the pilot hole as per batch drilling program.

A major operational glitch further added to the
delays in the drilling campaign brought about by severe
weather disturbances that hit the area. The Galoc-3 well
was abandoned on December 17, 2007 after efforts o free
the stuck drilling string resulted in the entire bottom hole
assembly being left in the hole. The Galoc -3 Sidetrack 1
{Galoc-3 ST 1) well was spudded on December 19, 2007
and reached its final total depth of 4,185 m MD on January
5, 2008. It was decided to TD the well since further drilling
was hampered by difficulties in drilling through dipping and
soft formation. Galoc-3 §T 1 drilled horizontally through
1,300 meters of reservoir section which, while less than the
targeted section of 1,600 meters, is sufficient to exceed the
requirements set for the well. As with the Galoc-4, the initial
results from analysis of LWD data on the Galoc-3 ST 1 well
indicate better than expected results. Another Galoc Project
milestone was achieved on January 7, 2008 with the landing
and setting of the 5% -inch pre-drilled liner on the Galoc-3
horizontal section, This event concluded the drilling activities
associated with the Galoc Development - Phase 1.
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Well Completion, Subsed Installation and FPSO Hook-up
The drill ship *Energy Searcher” remained in the location
for the installation of the subsea trees and completion and
flow cleaning of the wells. Galoc-3 ST 1 was completed and
flow cleaned first. The well successfully flowed cil to the
surface at a restricted rate of about 5,200 barrels of oil per
day on a 48/64-inch choke during clean up flow operations
carried out from February 20 - 21, 2008. The clean up flow
confirmed the integrity of the Galoc-3 8T | completion and
its capability to flow to surface to the FPSO. Samples of the
crude produced were collected for marketing purposes.

Immediately after the installation of the tree cap on the
first production well, GPC followed with the completion
and clean-up flow of the Galoc-4 well. Galoc-4 flowed oil
1o the drilling rig at a restricted rate of 6,150 barrels per day
with a choke setting of 52/64-inch on February 25, 2008.
As with the Galoc-3 ST 1, this flow confirmed both well and
completion integrity and the ability of the well to flow oil
1o the FPSO. The clean up flow and core analysis data for
both wells indicate a conservative increase from 10MM bbl
recoverable reserves to 14 MM bbl recoverable.

Demobilization of the “Energy Searcher” commenced
on February 26, 2008 and the rig finally sailed away on
February 29 for El Nido, Palawan to backload all equipment
used in the operations prior to sailing back to Singapore. The
drillship came on hire to the project on September 24, 2007.
1t was finally released from service to the project on March 7,
2008 when it finished offloading at Singapore, for a total of
165 days on-hire with no lost time incident.

GPC commenced the installation of subsea mooring
and riser system for the FPSO using the construction vessel
“Lewek Champion” which arrived at the Galoc location on
March 2, 2008. The work involved installation of over 1,200
tons of equipment on the seabed some 290 meters below
the surface. The installation work was concluded on March
29, 2008.

As of time of writing, GPC had started preparations
for the hook up and eventual commissioning of the FPSO
“Rubicon I[ntrepid” which is currently located in Batangas
Bay where final conversion and pre-commissioning work is
being undertaken. Once hooked up, commissioning of the
subsea equipment will be undertaken.

RFSU [ready for start-up} and commencement of
extended production testing are expected by third week of
April 2007, Once the FPSO is on line, final clean-up and full
testing will commence, giving First Qil by late April 2008,
Steady state production should commence after 3 three
weeks from RFSU. The first Galoc crude cargo is anticipated
in May 2008.

Forward Program

Having expressed satisfaction with the positive resulis of
the drilling and development work on Galoc Phase 1, GPC
has expressed readiness to proceed with Phase 2 of the project,
with the end view of accessing additional reserves {the Roo
3 Channel and the western fronts of the Roo 1 and Roo 2
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Channels) and accelerating oil recovery. The overall concept is
to drill 2 new production wells and possibly 1 gas production
and/or injection well. The operator will submit the work
program and budget requirements (initially placed at USD
2.954 MM for the initial Phase 2 pre-sanction activities that
include subsurface, well construction and facilities studies,
project management and provisions for contingencies. Ball
parkestimates forthe Phase 2 development is placed at around
USD 120 - 140 MM. GPC volunteered to raise the financing,
for Phase 2 for all the partners at similar terms to their Phase
1 financing. Under the proposed Phase 2 development,
PHILODRILL is expected to share between USD 8.4 - 10 MM
at current costs, with an initial cash out of between USD 3 -
3.5 MM with the balance being financed, possibly under the
GPC-offered financing package. PHILODRILL plans to pay
for its equity portion of the project cost out of the expected
revenues from Galoc Phase 1.

Galoc Production Economics

Assay results of the collected samples indicate the Galoc
crude to be fairly light at 36.1% API gravity with moderately
high sulfur content of 1.9%. This would place the crude
similarly with the Arabian light crudes. A check with the
market gives an early indicative pricing for “Palawan Light”
(the name under which the Galec crude is being marketed)
a price pegged at Dubai +5.20 or at prices just 1 USD below
Brent crude.

Philodrill now holds a 7.0175% carried participating
interest on the Galoc Block including the newly purchased
equity of Phoenix Gas & Oil Exploration Co. Inc.

3.0 SERVICE CONTRACT NQ. 14 C-2 (West Linapacan)

[n January 2007, US-based Pitkin Petroleum Limited
submitted a farm-in proposal for the West Linapacan Block
for them to earn 70% participating interest in exchange
for carrying the farming-out parties in the drilling of one
exploration well. PHILODRIILL was authorized by the West
Linapacan consortium to give a counter-proposal to the
farminee patterned after the Galoc deal, that is, a full carry 10
first oil for 75% participating interest.

At the same time that Pitkin expressed their intention
to farm-in, PHILODRILL also received expressions of interest
from Singapore-based Pearl Oil and Yilgarn Gold Limited of
Australia to evaluate the West Linapacan Block. Eventually,
Yilgarn and Pearl Qil decided not to pursue their interest
while Pitkin submitted a revised farm-in proposal for the
partners’ consideration.

The farm-in offer of Pitkin is essentially a multi-
phased approach o exploring the potential of the block
and developing existing, and if found, new fields in the
block. For Phase 1, the farminee offers to conduct fuli 3D
seismic reprocessing and interpretation, petrophysical and
stratigraphic studies and reservoir engineering studies. Under
Phase 2 of the proposal, they offer to drill 1 well, conduct
sub-sea inspection of the facilities, and re-certify reserves

volumetrics, which are all at the discretion of Pitkin, The
proposed Phase 3 will involve the development of 1 field up
to commercial “first 0il”, again the conduct of which is at the
discretion of the farminee.

In a partners meeting held in April 2007, the West
Linapacan consortium responded to Pitkin's farm-in
proposal and asked for improvement on certain provisions
on the terms of the offer. Principally, the partners asked for
the reduction of the time frame for the farm-in program
from Pitkin's 6 years to 3 years. The partners also asked fora
50% - 50% split in the sharing of the historical cost account
for Pitkin's pay 100% to earn 75% offer. The partners
likewise asked for a similar production bonus scheme as in
the Galoc deal where the farming out parties receive bonuses
at production start-up and when cumulative production
reaches specific benchmark levels.

Pitkin accepted these revisions proposed by the farmors
but refused to accept liabilities for the P & A of the existing
wells, thus paving way for protracted negotiations. Finally in
November 2007, the parties agreed that since Pitkin would
not share in the abandonment cost of the existing West
Linapacan wells, the costs related to the drilling of these
wells amounting to approximately USD 80 MM would be
exctuded from the farm-in, 1n effect Pitkin would only share
in effectively USD 12 MM of the historical cost and this share
will only be assigned to Pitkin upon completion of Phase 3
or effectively “first oil”.

Early this year, a full set of the final farm-in documents
was circulated for execution and signing by the partners,
As of time of writing, the documents are still with Oriental
Petroleum and Minerals Corporation, the last signatory.

4.0 SERVICE CONTRACT NO. A (Octon)

PHILODRILL, in its Exploration Operations Review
for 2006, reported the completion by Vitol GPC SA of their
initial G & G studies including, among others, a full 3D
seismic data interpretation of the Octon structure, advanced
core studies, reservoir modeling and simulation and facilities
design. Vitol GPC's initial evaluation of the Octon Field
development options, which were at that time mostly geared
toward a joint Galoc-Octon development, proved to give
preferential advantage to Galoc over Octon, and that a stand-
alone development scheme for the Octon Field may be the
better option.

With renewed optimism buoyed by the favorable computed
reserves and additional potential from theirmodeling of Octon,
Vitol GPC submitted a revised farm-in proposal expressing
desire to continue to optimize the Qcton development
options, and at the same time, to re-focus on exploration
of other areas outside of the Octon area. The consortium
accepted Vitol GPC's proposal; the farm-in agreement was
signed and eventually submitted to the Department of Energy
(DOE) in March 2007 for approval. While waiting for the
DOE’s acceptance of the farm-in, Vitol GPC continued with
their technical evaluation of the whole SC 6A Block.

The Philodrill Corporation
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On the development options for the Octon Field, Vitol
GPC engaged two facilities consultancy groups to review
all available development schemes for the field. These
companies, Crondal Energy of the UK and Global Process
Systems based in Dubai, both recommended a stand-alone
option either with a simple buoy mooring system attached
to a FPSO (floating production and storage offloading)
system, or an unmanned structure with a concrete subs-sea
crude oil storage facility for offloading 10 sea-going vessels.
Another option that Vitol GPC is considering is the use of a
cheaper integrated production umbilical system that can be
connected o a flowline and tied back to the Galoc Field.

Parallel to the Octon Field development approach,
Vitol CPC proposed to do a staged work program which will
include a preliminary review and synthesis of the extensive
SC 6A database, a comprehensive review of the exploration
potential of the block, generate a portfolio of exploration
targets and drill a well either in the Octon structure or
somewhere else in the block. Vitol GPC offered to carry the
partners up to the first stage of development if the drilling
campaign results are positive,

For the first stage of the new farm-in commitment,
Vitol GPPC engaged the services and expertise of P.T. Horizon
Geoconsulting, a [akarta-based support company, to generate
a database and undertake preliminary evaluation works.
The initial results confirmed the presence of a number of
prospects and leads that have been identified in earlier works,
including the Barselisa Structure which is by far seen as the
primary prospect that they felt warranted further additional
studies. In addition, Vital GPC had identified a series of small
culminations in the vicinity of the Octon structure which
could add value in case of a development. Also, a potential
for a stratigraphic play pinching out against the nearby Gintu
High was identified.

Alongside the farm-in negotiations, the Joint Venture
prepared, finalized and approved a new Joint Operating
Agreement (JOA) which will govern all the contractual affairs
of the consortium. The DOE finally approved the farm-in of
Vitol GPC on September 25, 2007.

Towatds the end of 2007, Vitol GPC formed a team of
geoscientists and engineers tasked to evaluate the prospectivity
of the Octon area in conjunction with the Galoc Field. This
will entail detailed interpretation of a critical sector of the
3D seismic data acquired by GECO-Prakla for the SC 6A and
SC 14 consortia in 1997. As of time of writing, the farminee
was still waiting for the delivery of the complete, seamless 3D
seismic 32-bit data set in order to proceed with the joint field
evaluation project.

5.0 SERVICE CONTRACT NO. 6 (Cadlao)

Exploration and production activities on the Cadlao
Block remain suspended. Oriental Petroleum & Minerals
Corp. (Oriental) which took over the operatorship of the
block from PHILODRILL, however, continued to promote
the area to potential farminees.

Annval Report 2007

Towards the end of 2007, Blade Petroleum and Venturoil
included the Cadlao area among the several petroleum blocks
in the NW Patawan shelf that they are considering to farm-in
into and have expressed their interest to reactivate the Cadlao
Field. The field last produced in 1991.

PHILODRILL is a non-paying party in $C 6 Cadlao
Block, holding a 1.65% revenue share in the gross proceeds
from Cadlac field production. The company is presently
evaluating an offer from Blade/Venturoil to buyout the 4.95%
overriding royalty interest on the block that PHILODRILL
equally shares with Philex Mining Corporation and Trans-
Asia Qil & Energy Development Corporation. [n the 2nd half
of 2007, Blade/Venturoil bought the 44.9437% participating
interest of Phoenix Energy Corporation in the Cadlao Block.

6.0 SERVICE CONTRACT NO, 4B (Bonita)

During the second quarter of 2007, Venturoil, in
partnership with the Australia-based Blade Petroleum,
extended the coverage of their technical review of the
Northwest Palawan acreages to include the Bonita Block.
PHILODRILL as operator of the block started providing
them with technical data on the block under the cover of a
Confidentiality Agreement.

In August 2007, the consortium agreed to grant Blade/
Venturoil a 3-month exclusivity period from September
1, 2007 within which they will conduct due diligence and
technical studies of the block with a view to preparing a
farm-in proposal assuming the studies result in a positive
outcome. Aside from the Bonita Block, the Blade/Venuuroil's
studies also cover the Tara, Libro, North Matinloc and Block
D - Retention Block, all under Service Contract 14.

Blade/Venturoil subsequently revised their proposal to
an option to farm-in. The consortium is currently evaluating
the revised proposal.

7.0 SERVICE CONTRACT NO. 41 (Sulu Sea)

The DOE, in their letter. to block operator Tap
{Philippines) Pty Lid dated 23 January 2007, approved
the extension of Contract Year 9 by a period of 12 months
ending on May 10, 2008. As a consequence of such extension,
Contract Year 10 now commences on May 10, 2008 and ends
on May 10, 2009. The DOE likewise approved the deferment
of the 25% relinquishment of the original area after the
conclusion of the 3D seismic data interpretation, as Tap
requested, but no later than the end of 2007.

In February 2007, Tap entered into a farm-out
agreement with Salamander Energy Plc (Salamander). Under
the agreement, Salamander earned 35% interest in SC 41
for contributing 1o the cost of the forward work program
including the planned seismic acquisition and processing.
Tap retained 50% of its original earned 85% interest, as well
as the operatorship of the block.

Tap and Salamander commenced their seismic data
acquisition on May 7, 2007 using Veritas" M/V Voyager. The
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survey was completed on July 10, 2007, acquiring a total of
751 sq km of prime 3D data and 248 sq km of infill 3D data,
Seismic data processing in Singapore was completed towards
the year-end. Salamander bankrolled the greater part of the
costs of the 3D seismic program as its commitment for the
farm-in into the SC 41 Block.

[n a meeting held on September 15, 2007, Tap informed
the partners of the acceleration of the drilling schedule 10
April 2008. This was brought about by the availability of
a suitable rig in the area in that time frame. Earlier in the
month, Tap issued the AFE for Well Planning which is essen-
tally for the planning, basic engineering and procurement of
long lead items for the drilling campaign.

Tap advised the partners of the plan for the drilling of
two wells back to back. They proposed to drill the second
well on a sole risk basis with Salamander but would allow
the Filipino partners to back-in by paying the back-in
penalty of 1200% on the carried cost of the second well out
of production. They are now finalizing negotiations for a
drilling rig to be mobilized in the area by lune 1, 2008. They
are also finalizing work to rank the top 4 prospects identified
in the 3D seismic data acquired last year.

Early this year, Tap submiued the budget requirement
for the drilling campaign. This includes a firm budget of USD
41.2 MM representing G & G and the cost of the first well{dry
well basis) and a contingent budget of USD 36.98MM for the
second well (dry well basis). There would be an additional
unbudgeted cost of about USD 12-14 MM per well should a
testing program be undertaken. PHILODRILL has a 3.398%
participating interest in the block. As PHILODRILL is only
carried in the first well, the company has to pay about USD
1.7 MM in the second well.

8.0 SERVICE CONTRACT NO. 53 (Onshore Mindoro)

Block Operator Laxmi Organic Industries (Laxmi)
reported that for the most part of the first quarter, they have
integrated the results of the recently compieted geochemical
survey with geological and geophysical data. The initial
results of the geochemical sampling, alongside the satellite
imagery data reprocessing, vahdaied a 1ot of the prospecis
and leads previously identified in the Mindoro Block. Laxmi
presented the results of these works to the DOE and had
negotiated that these works be accepted as compliance for
the Phase 1 work obligations of the consortium for the block
under the service contract,

Lundin Petroleum expressed interest in the Onshore
Mindoro black and had signed a confidentiality agreement
with Laxmi. Representatives of Lundin visited Manila in
March 2008 1o do due diligence work on the block. They
subsequently declined to farm-in in to the block.

In June 2008 during a meeting with partners Basic
Consolidated and PHILODRILL, Laxmi indicated that they
are withdrawing from the block. The partners requested
Laxmi to provide them with their financial, legal and
technical records of the block,

In a letter 10 the DOE dated June 29, 2007, Laxmi
requested for a 2-month extension on the decision deadline
10 proceed to Sub-Phase 2 of the contract. The DOE granted
the operator a 60-day extension from July 9, 2007 during
which the DOE expected to receive from Laxmi a definitive
farm-in agreement with a qualified exploration company.
Laxmi's farming-out was part of its plan o exit from 5C 53.

Pitkin Petroleum had proposed to assume Laxmi's
interests and the operatorship of the block by carrying all
the continuing partners (PHILODRILL, Basic Consolidated
and Anglo Philippine Holdings) for a seismic program with a
minimum commitment of USD 1.5 MM, subject 1o the DOE's
acceptance of the seismic work program. They proposed to
pay 100% of the program costs to earn 70% interest on the
biock.

On September 6, 2007, Pitkin/Laxmi and the Filipino
partners formally submitted the Pitkin farm-in agreement
to the DOE for approval. Early this year, Pitkin expressed
interest 1o double the expenditure for the seismic program
to USD 3MM. To date, the farm-in agreement is pending
approval with the DOE.

9.0 SWAN BLOCK (Deepwater Northwest Palawan)

In January 2007, lead applicant PHILODRILL explored
the possibility of including the SWAN Consortium in Service
Contracts 57 and 58 through a letter to PNOC - Exploration
Corporation. Under the proposed participation set-up,
PHILODRILL will get 15% carried interest in each of $Cs
57 and 58 to be taken from PNOC-EC's carried interests.
In exchange, PHILODRILL will assign to PNOC-EC 5%
participating interest in SC 14 ~ West Linapacan Block, One
advantage of the proposed arrangement is that both the SC 57
and SC 58 consortia will gain from the cost recovery pool of
about LISD 23 MM that the SWAN Block will be contributing,
as well as gain access 1o PHILODRILL s extensive database on
the SWAN Block.

PNQOC-EC agreed in principle to the mechanism of the
agreement but have asked that they be given ample time to
conduct due diligence 1o valuate the 5% West Linapacan
equity in order to justify the 15% equity that they will give
up in return to the SWAN Block consortium.

For the rest of 2007, PNOC-EC continued to review the
PHILODRILL offer. To date, however, the company has not
received any firm indication of PNOC-EC's response.

The Philodrill Corporation
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITYI

; \ © FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of The Philodrill Corporation is responsible for all information and
representations contained in the consolidated financial statements for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. These financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the Philippines and reflect
amounts that are based on the best estimates and informed judgment of management with
an appropriate consideration to materiality.

In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides
for the necessary internal controls to ensure that transactions are properly authorized and
recorded, assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use or disposition and liabilities are
recognized. The management likewise discloses to the company's audit committee and to its
external auditor: (i) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls
that could adversely affect its ability to record, process, and report financial data; (ii) material
weaknesses in the internal controls; and (iii) any fraud that involves management or other
employees who exercise significant roles in internal controls.

The Board of Directors reviews the consolidated financial statements before such statements
are approved and submitted to the stockholders of the company.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has
examined the consolidated financial statements of the company in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards in the Philippines and has expressed its opinion on the fairness
of presentation upon completion of such examination, in its report to the Board of Directors
and stockholders.

Signed under cath by the following:

Cl( @L—ﬁ

ALFREDO C. RAMOS
Chairman of the Board/Chief Executive Officer

REYNALDO E. NAZAREA
Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
The Philodiill Corporation

81h Floor, Quad Alpha Centrum

123 Pioneer Street, Mandaluyong City

We have audited the accompanying [inancial statements of
The Philedrill Corporation (the Company) and Subsidiary,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at December
31, 2007, and the related consolidated statement of income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the
balance sheet of the Company as at December 31, 2006 and
the statements of income, statements of changes in equity and
statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005, and 2 summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes. We did not audit the 2006 and 2005
financial statements of EDSA Properties Holdings Inc. (EPHI)
and the 2007 and 2005 financial statements of PPentaCapital
Investment Corporation (PentaCapital}, the investments in
which are reflected in the financial statements under the equity
method of accounting. The investment in PentaCapital represent
about 14% of the Company’s total assets as of December 31, 2007
and the equity in their net earnings represent about 5% and 29%
of ihe Company’s total revenues in 2007 and 2005, respeciively,
while the equity in the net earnings of EPHI represents about 4%
and 28% of the Company's towal revenues in 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Those statements were audited by other auditors
whose reports has been furnished 1o us, and our opinion, insofar
as it relates to the amounts included for EPHI and PPentaCapital,
is based solely on the reports of the other auditors, The other
auditor's report on PentaCapital was qualified as discussed in the
sixth paragraph.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these {inancial statements in accordance with
the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatements,
whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates 1that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. Except as discussed in the
sixth paragraph, we conducted our audits in accordance with
Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making

gISGV & Co

those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinton on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the
report of other auditors are sufficient and appropriate to provide
basis for our audit opinion,

The report of the other auditors on PentaCapital was qualified
because (1) they were unable to satisfy themselves with respect
to retirement benefits expense and comparative disclosures due
to the absence of an actuarial valuation report; (2) they were
not able 10 perform sufficient additional procedures regarding
the investments in PentaCapital Realty Corporation and
PentaCapital Holdings, Inc; and (3) income tax for the period
was based on qualified consolidated income of PentaCapital and
its subsidiaries.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other
auditors, except for the effects on the finandal statements of
such adjusuments, if any, as might have been disclosed had the
other auditors been able to satisfy themselves with respect to the
matters discussed in the preceding paragraph, the consolidated
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of The Philodrill Corporation
and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2007, and their financial
performance and their cash {lows for the year then ended and the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2006, and
its financial performance and its cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Adiirns Mo Coanad s

Aldrin M. Cerrado

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 86735

SEC Accreditation No. 0113-AR-1

‘Tax Identification No. 129-433-783

PTR No, 0005399, January 3, 2008, Makati City

April 18, 2008
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BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Entity
2007 2006

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash P3,825,792 P5,239,364
Receivables - net (Note 5) 57.435,816 78,609,623
Crude oil inventory 9,683,430 12,409,228
Advances to related companies - net (Note 16) 7,309,559 34,852,062
Other current assets 125,820 135,167
Total Current Assets 78,380,417 131,245,444
Noncurrent Assets
Deferred oil exploration costs - net (Notes 2, 6 and 10) 839,696,430 807,168,493
Investments in associates (Note 8) 211,617,086 203,337,072
Property and equipment - net {Notes 2, 6 and 7) 277,998,366 281,348,210
Available-for-sale (AFS) investments - net {Note 9) 126,129,684 128,141,879
Investment properties - net 125,843 164,209
Other noncurrent assets 811,015 1,047,715

Total Noncurrent Assets

1,456,378,424

1,421,207,578

TOTAL ASSETS

P1,534,758,841

P1,552,453,022

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 13) P88,724,515 P80,724,515
Trade and other payables (Notes 6 and 12} 21,358,231 30,996,336
Advances from related companies (Note 16) 15,782,024 35,457,474
Dividends payable 5,013,853 5,013,853
Subscriptions payable 2,069,233 1,652,742
Loans payable {Note 11) - 21,415,114
Income tax payable - 1,143,894
Total Current Liabilities 132,947,856 176,403,928
Noncurrent Liability

Pension liability {Note 19} 3,471,536 1,043,136

Equity
Capital stock - P0.01 par value (Note 14)
Authorized - 155.0 billion shares
[ssued
Subscribed
Subscriptions receivable
Paid in capital from sale of treasury {Note 14)
Unreatized valuation losses on AFS investments {Note 9)
Deficit {Note 14)

1,529,187,292

5,763,151
{818,070)

1,624,012
(87,875,464)
(49,541,472)

1,527.632,861
7,311,155
(1,157,679)

1,624,012
(82,807,262)
(77.597,129)

Total Equity

1,398,339,449

1,375,005,958

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

P1,534,758,841

P1,552,453,022

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements,
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Entity
2007 20006 2005
REVENUES

Share in petroleum operations (Notes 2 and 6) P 168,952,000 P 147,043,008 P78,738,794
Equity in net earnings of associates (Note 8) 8,280,014 5,796,937 38,282,287
Miscellaneous 764,866 2,101,638 3,131,318
177,996,886 154,941,583 120,152,399

GAIN ON SALE OF PROPERTY
AND EQUIPMENT (Note 7) 18,862,704 - -
INTEREST INCOME 3,320,565 5,748,273 9,591,242
GAIN ON SALE OF AFS INVESTMENTS (Note 9) 984,752 - -
FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS - net 452,092 3,607,623 3,795,918

COSTS AND EXPENSES
Share in costs and operating expenses

{Notes 6 and 17)
General and administrative expenses {Note 18)
Interest and financing charges (Notes 11 and 13)
Provision for impairment losses (Notes 2, 3 and 10)
Loss on disposal of shares of stock (Note 8)

(122,209,853)
(32,887,471)
(16,360,901)

(658,746)

(89,710,943)
(29,875,565)
(22,971,000)

(194,860,000)

(53,848,004)
(23,053,826)
(48,571,843)

(4,556,684)

(172,116,971)

(337,417,508)

(130,030,357)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 29,500,028 {173,120,029) 3,509,202
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 20) 1,444,371 2,646,085 764,407
NET INCOME (LOSS) P28,055,657 {P175,766,114) P2,744,795
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (Note 15)
Basic P0.0002 {P0O.0O11) P0.0018
Diluted P0.0002 (P0.0011}) P0.0018
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQuITY

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2004 and 2005

Paid in Lintealized
Capital from Share in Valuatien
Capital Stock {Note 14} Sale of Assodiate’s  Losses on AFS Retained
Subscriptions Treasury Revaluation [nvestmenits Earnings
Issued Subscribed Receivable {Note 14) Increment {Note 9} { Deficit} Total

BALANCES AT JANUARY 1, 2005 P1,482,066,842  P52,877,174 (P2,112,899} P- P294,860,608 (P158,419,567}  P95,424,190 P1,764,696,348
Issuance of shares 6,537 (6,537) - - - - - -
Collection of subscriptions receivable - - a2 - - - - 112
Subtotal 1.482.073,379 52,870,637 {2,112,487) - 194,860,608 {158,419,567) 95,424,190 1,764,696,760
Net untealized valuation

gains on AFS investments - - - - - 28,682,539 - 18,652,539
Netincome for the year - - - - - - 2,744,795 2,744,795
Total income [loss) recognized

for the year - - - - - 28.682,539 2,744,795 31,427.334
BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2005  1,482,073,379 52,870,637 (2,112,487} - 294,860,608 {129,737,028) 98,168,985 1,796,124,094
[ssuance of shares 45,559,482 (45,559,482) - - - - - -
Collection of subscriptions

receivable - - 954,808 - - - - 954,808
Sale of reasury shares - - - 1,624,012 - - - 1,624,012
Subtotal 1,527,632,861 7,311,155 (1.157,679) 1,624,012 294,860,608 (129,737,028) 98,168,585 1,798,702,914
Net unrealized valuation

gains on AFS investments - - - - - 46,929,766 - 46,929,766
Reversal due to sale of AFS investiments - - - - |294,860,608) - - (294,860,608)
Net loss for the year - - - - - - {175,766,114) (175,766,114}
Total income {loss)

recognized for the year - - - - {294,860,608) 46,929,766 {175.766,114) _ (423.696,956)
BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2006 1,527,632,861 7,311,155 {1,157,67%) 1,624,012 - (82,807,262)  (77,597,129) 1,375,005,958
[ssuance of shares 1554431 (1.548,004) - - - - - 6,427
Collection of subscriptions

receivable - - 339,609 - - - - 339,609
Subtotal 1,529,187,292 5,763,151 (818070) 1,624,012 - {B2807.262) (77.597129)  1,375,351,994
Net unrealized valuation losses

on AFS investments - - - - - {12271.433) - {12,271,433)
Reversal due to sale of AFS investments - - - - - 7,203,231 - 7,203,231
Net income for the year - - - - - - 28,055,657 28.055,657
Total income (loss)

recognized for the year - - - - - {5.068,202) 28,055,657 22,987.455
BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2007 P1,52%,187,292 15,763,151 (P818,070)  P1,624,012 P-  (P87,875464) [P49,541472) P'1,398,339,449

See accompanying Notes o Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CAsH FLows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Entity
2007 20006 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before income tax P29,500,028 (P173,120,029) P3,509,202
Adjustments for:

Gain on sale of property and equipment (18,862,704) - -

Interest and financing charges 16,360,901 22,971,000 48,571,843

Equity in net earnings of associates (Note 8) (8,280,014) (5.796,937) (38,282,287)

Depletion, depreciation and amortization 3,721,398 2,289,307 4,421,153

Pension benefit expense 3,428,400 1,383,321 1,295,839

Interest income (3,320,565) (5,748,273) (9.591,242)

Gain on sale of AFS investments (984,752) - -

Provision for impairment losses {Notes 3 and 10} 658,746 - 4,556,684

Linrealized foreign exchange gains (110,159) (3,441,181) (698,551)

Loss on disposal of shares of stock (Note 8) - 194,860,000 -
Operating income before working capital changes 22,111,279 33,397,208 13,782,641
Decrease {increase) in:

Receivables (36,355,131) 24,842,984 (5.141,849)

Crude oil inventory 2,725,798 (10,454,474} 3,546,742

Other current assets 1,153,581 31,444 80,941
Pecrease in trade and other payables {2.605,918) {30,678,336) {13,858,548)
Net cash generated from (used in) operations (12,970,391) 17,138,826 (1,590,073)
Interest and financing charges paid (23,393,088) (27.642,240) (25,441,419)
Income taxes paid, including creditable taxes applied {3.732,499) (2,042,156) {224,442)
Pension benefits contributions (1,000,000) (1,000,000} -
interest received 778,859 5,748,273 67,734
Net cash used in operating activities (40,317,119) (7,797,297} (27,188,200}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of:

AFS investments 58,744,927 3,343,166 -

Property and equipment 19,000,000 - -

Investments in associates - 214,145,742 -
Reductions in (additions 10):

Deferred oil exploration costs (33,186,683) (1,919,674) (11,651,942)

Property and equipment (470,484) (10,913,525} (4,655,509)
AFS investments (218,888) - {13,755)
Advances to related companies - (9,384,185) (1,347,769)
Other noncurrent assets 236,700 (983,215} 783,117
Cash dividends received - - 9,280,555
Net cash from (used in} investing activities 44,105,572 194,288,309 (7.605,303)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
'roceeds from:
Advances from related companies 27,542,503 - 143,218,490
Loan availment {(Note 13) 8,000,000 - -
Collection of subscriptions receivable 346,036 954,808 412
Sale of treasury shares - 42,336,569 -
Payments of:
Advances from related companies (19,675,450) (222,138,140} -
Loans payable (21,415,114} (6,833,788) (29,697,384)
Long-term debt {Note 11) - (4,263,450} (73.322,578)

Net cash from {(used in) financing activities (5,202,025} (189,944,001} 40,198,940
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS {1.413,572) (3,452,989) 5,405,437
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,239,364 8,692,353 3,286,910
CASH AT END OF YEAR P3,825,792 P5,239,364 8,692,353

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Notes 10 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Infoermation and Authorization of Issue of Financial Statements

Corporate Information

The Philodrill Corporation {the "arent Company or TPC) was registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission {SEC) on June 26, 1969, The Parent Company and Phoenix Gas and Oil Exploration Company, Inc. {PGO,
a wholly-owned subsidiary and incorporated in the Philippines), collectively referred 10 as the “Group” {see Note 3} are
primarily engaged in oil exploration and production. The Parent Company is also an investment holding company with
investments in financial services, oil exploration and production and mining.

The Parent Company, which is operating in only one business segment, has two associates engaged in financial services.
The Parent Company and its associates have no geographical segments as they were incorporated and are operating
within the Philippines. Financial information regarding associates as of and for the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006 is presented in Note 8.

The registered business address of the Parent Company is 8th Floor, Quad Alpha Centrum, 125 Pioneer Street,
Mandaluyong City.

Authorization of Issue of Financial Statements
The accompanying consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors (BOD) on
April 18, 2008.

2. Status of Operations and Management Plans

Petroleum Qperations

The Parent Company, together with other participants (collectively referred to as the “Contractor”), entered into several
Service Contracts (8Cs} and Geophysical Survey and Exploration Contracts {GSECs) with the Philippine Government,
through the Department of Energy (DOE), for the exploration, development and exploitation of the contract areas
situated mostly in offshore Palawan where oil discoveries were made, The Parent Company's present petroleum revenues
and production costs and related expenses are from certain areas of SC 14, particularly Nido and Matinloc.

The aforementioned SCs and GSECs provide for certain minimum work expenditure obligations and the drilling of a
specified number of wells and are covered by operating agreements which set forth the participating interests, rights and
obligations of the Contractor. The Parent Company's share in the jointly controlled assets of the aforementioned SCs
and GSECs is included principally under the “Property and equipment” and “Deferred oil exploration costs” accounts in
the consolidated balance sheets.

The Group’s participating interests in the different SCs as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

Participating Interest
(in percentage)

2007 2006 2005
SC 6 (Northwest Palawan)
Block A (Octon) 43.430 43.330 43.330
Block B (Bonita) 21.875 21.875 21.875
Cadlao Block -* -* -*
SC 14 (Northwest 'alawan}
Block A (Nido) 26.106 26.106 26,106
Block B (Matinloc) 41.608 41.608 41.608
Block B-1 {North Matinloc) 33.110 17.850 17.850
Block C-1 (Galoc) 7.018 6.397 6.397
Block C-2 {West Linapacan) 28.070 25.588 25.588
Block D (Retention Block) 33.751 33.751 33.751
Tara Block 22.560 22,500 22,500
SC 41 {Sulu Sea) 3.398 3.398 15.480
$C 53 (Onshore Mindoro) 22.000 22.000 30.000**
SWAN Block (Northwest Palawan) 32.975 32975 32975

“ Carried cust interest with revenue interest of 0.803%
** Combined participating interest with Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation {APHC) and Basic Consolidated, inc. (BCI)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Assignment of PGO's participating interest 1o the Parent Company

On May 2, 2007, the Parent Company acquired 100% of shares of stock of PGO from Phoenix Energy Corporation
{see Note 3}. Subsequently, on August 14, 2007, PGO assigned its participating interest, except participating interest in
SC 6 Block B, to the Parent Company by executing a Deed of Assignment and Assumption. The details of the assigned
participating interest are as follows:

Participating Interest Carried Interest

Area (in percentage) (in percentage)
SC 6 Block A (Octon) 1,100 2,500
SC 14:

Block B-1 (North Matinloc) 15.260 -

Block C-1 (Galoc) 0.6205 -

Block C-2 {Wesi Linapacan) 2.482 -

SC 6 BLOCK A

In August 2005, Vitol Services Limited (Vitol) expressed their interest to farm-in into the Octon Block.

[n October 2006, Vitol reported the completion of their geophysical and geological studies including, among others, the
full 3D seismic data interpretation of the Octon structure, static and dynamic reservoir modeling, advanced core studies,
and well and facilities for the Octon Field based on a single directional well, The Vitol reservoir models point to a proven
area, the North Octon, and an area of additional potential {South Octon). Based on the results of the core studies, the
Octon-3 area could also have an upside potential. All the areas examined are also believed 10 contain significant volumes
of gas, From their studies and models, Vitol had identified different commercial options for the Qcton Field, all of which
involve a joint Octon - Galoc development.

In November 2006, Vitol submitted a revised farm-in proposal expressing their desire 1o continue to optimize Octon
development options, and in tandem, to re-focus on exploration of other areas outside of the Octon area and come up
with a drilling prospect within a year’s time. As of December 31, 2006, the Octon consortium was still evaluating the
merits of the revised Vitol farm-in proposal.

In March 2007, the farm-in agreement was signed by all the pariners of the consortium and subsequently submitted 1the
same to DOE for approval. Furthermore, during second quarter of 2007, the consortium drafted a new Joint Operating
Agreement which will replace the old SC6A JOA and a side agreement or Carried Interest Agreement, In September 2007,
DOE approved the farm-in proposal from Vitol.

In a meeting held in Singapore last November 2007 to update the consortium on the ongoing geophysical and geological
studies, Vitol focused on two main areas, the Barselisa and the Octon area. In the north, Barselisa is seen as the primary
prospect that they felt warranted further additional work. The shallow prospects an the Malajon-Saddle Rock trend were
downgraded because of trapping and seal risks.

In the southern Octon area, Vitol identilied a series of small culminations in the vicinity of Octon which could add value
in case of a development. The prospectivily of the southern dosure of the QOclon structure was also upgraded by the
seismic evaluation. A potential for a stratigraphic play pinching out against Gintu High was also identified.

Vitol has asked the Parent Company 10 retrieve the original processed 3D data from Western Geco in order to facilitate the
upgrading of the two areas prior to the end of the evaluation period in March 2008.

SC 6 BLOCK B
Production and exploration activities on SC 6B remain suspended.

In October 2005, Basic Petroleum and Minerals, Inc. (BPMI} expressed their intent to farm-in into the $C 6B Block.
BPMI offered to conduct, at their own expense, seismic and subsurface studies to firm up recoverable reserve estimates
and forecast potential production rates and performance from the Bonita field. On the basis of BPMI's farm-in offer, a
work program for 2006 consisting of the aforementioned activities at an initial budget of $50,000 was submitted 10 the
DOE. Communications and negotiations between BPMI and the Bonita consortium continued to arrive at a mutually
acceptable farm-in terms.

In 2006, negotiations between BPMI, now Forum Energy Philippines Corporation (Forum) and the Bonita consortium
continued. As of the end of December 2006, the Bonita consortium had yet to receive indication from Forum whether
they will proceed with their farm-in offer. Meanwhile, the Parent Company continued 0 promote the area for possible
farm-in.
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During 2nd quarter of 2007, Venturoil, in partnership with the Australia-based Blade Petroleum, extended the coverage of
their technical review of the Northwest Palawan acreages to include the Bonita block, The Parent Company as operator of
the block started providing them with technical data on the block under the cover of a Confidentiality Agreement.

In August 2007, the consortium agreed to grant Blade-Venturoil a 3-month exclusivity period from September 1, 2007
within which they will conduct due diligence and technical studies of the block with a view to preparing a farm-in
proposal assuming the studies result in a positive outcome. Aside from the Bonita block, the Blade-Venturoil's studies
also cover the Tara, Libro, North Matinloc and Block D-Retention Block, all under 8C 14.

Blade-Venturoil subsequently revised their proposal to an option to farm-in. The consortium is currently considering the
revised proposal.

SC 6 - CADLAO BLOCK

Blade Petroleum-Venturoil had bought the 44.9437% participating interest of Phoenix Energy Corporation in the Cadlao
Block. Blade and Venturoil have had protracted talks with Oriental Petroleum to move the reactivation of the Cadlao Field
forward. The ’arent Company owns a 1.65% carried interest in the Cadlao Field.

SC 14

The contract areas covered by SC 14 are situated offshore northwest of Palawan Island and west of Busuanga Island in the
Philippines. Lintil April 2004, SC 14 was under the operatorship of Alcorn Production (Philippines}, Inc. (APP1).

Blocks A and B of SC 14 are currently in production stage. On Block €, however, Galoc Production Company (GPC)
continued its preparations for the eventual commissioning and installation of production facilities for the reactivation
of Galoc field.

In February 2004, VAALCO Energy, Inc., Alcorn Philippines, Inc., Alcorn Production Phils., Inc. (APPI), and Altisima
Energy, Inc. (coltectively, the Seller) entered into an Option Agreement (the Agreement) with Basic Petroleum & Minerals
Inc. (BPMI), Oriental Petroleum & Minerals Corp. (OPMC), Linapacan Oil & Gas Power Corp., Nido Petroleum, Alcorn
Gold Resources Corporation, Petre Energy Resources Corp., Phoenix Energy Corporation and Trans-Asia & Qil Energy
Development Corp., and the Company (collectively, the Buyer). Under the Agreement, the Selter granted the Buyer the
option 1o purchase the Seller's participating interests in SC 6 and 8C14 and, subject to approval by the DOE, all the
Seller's rights, title and interests in and to all of: {a) the platforms, wells, production facilities and related assets; (b)
contracts, data, information and related materials; {c} accounts payable, asserted claims, contingent liabilities and non-
intercompany accounts receivables; {d) crude oil held or saved in the production facility after the Effective Date; and (e)
the jointly contributed operating expense fund and contingency fund (collectively, the Interests) incident to its ownership
and operation of the SCs.

The significant terms of the Agreement follow:

a. The Interests to be transferred are subject 1o the obligation of the Buyer to comply with existing laws, rules and
regulations of the DOE and the terms and conditions of the SCs and respective Joint Operating Agreements, including
but not limited to, the obligation to plug and abandon the useless platforms and other off-shore facilities;

b. The Buyer shall have the right to perform, at its option, whatever due diligence it deems necessary in respect of the
Interests and Seller’s rights therein during the period prior o the closing Date on April 30, 2004; and,

c. Atany time prior to closing Date, the Buyer, but not the Seller, may, in its sole and absolute discretion, notify the Seller
that it does not intend to acquire the Interests, in which case; the Agreement shall terminate and neither party shall
have any further obligation, either monetary or otherwise, to the other party. If not terminated prior to the Closing
Date, the Seller will ransfer the Interests o the Buyer at the Closing Date pursuant 1o a mutually acceptable Purchase
and Sale Agreement, that will include the following significant terms and conditions, among others:

i. All Interests will be conveyed on an “as is, where is” basis and the Buyer will assume all rights, responsibilities
and obligations in connection with such interests as more fully described in the Agreement;

ii. The Effective Date of the transfer shall be February 1, 2004, and the Closing Date shall be on April 30, 2004
and,

iii. The purchase price shall be One Hundred United States Dollars (LIS$100) and other valuable considerations.
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The withdrawal and assignment of the Seller’s participating interests to the remaining Consortium members were finally
completed on June 30, 2004. APPI was the operator of 5C14 until June 30, 2004, As a resuls of the assignment, the
Company together with OPMC and BP’MI became the joint operators of SC 6 and 14 designating the Company as the lead
operator starting July 1, 2004. The participating interests of the Seller were assigned on a pro-rata basis to the remaining
Consortium members.

Beginning March 2004, the Company, together with other SC14 Consortium members, received several proposals from
various companies to increase and enhance production in Blocks A and B and to revive past oil discoveries in Block C of
SCa.

The Parent Company as the lead operator, continued the implememation of a number of projects aimed at increasing
production and mitigating operational hazards at the field which included the repair works on the plaform deck and
pipelines and the upgrading of the fire deluge system ar the Matinloc platform. Over at Nido field, a new three-phase
pump system was installed in December 2007. A sub-sea inspection of the existing platforms and sub-sea pipelines is
scheduled to be carried out in May 2008 and is expected to costs from US$700,000 to US$1 million.

SC 14 C-1 Galoc Block

In September 2004, the Parent Company, together with other SC 14 Consortium members, entered into a farm-in
agreement (the Agreement) with a UK-based and an Australian-based company (collectively, the Farmees) to farm-in
1o the Galoc Field in Block C of $C 14 {the Galoc Block). The Agreement provides for, among others, the designation
of the Farmees as the Operator and the assignment of 58.29% participaling interest, with the existing Filipino partners
carried free in the development of the production area in exchange for the contribution of the working capital, technical
expertise and other resources to develop the Galoc Feld.

In August 2005, the GPC was formed as the special purpose company to accept the assigned 58.29% participating interest
and assume operatorship of the Galoc Block.

In August 2006, the consortium secured an approval from the DOE regarding the Galoc Plan of Development {POD).
Additionally, the Department of Environment and Natural Resources through the Environmental Management Bureau,
granted the Environmental Compliance Certificate to the Galoc Area Development which also covers the Octon Field in
SC6A.

A new Joint Operating Agreement that will govern the SC 14 C-1 Block affairs was approved and adopted by the consortium
on September 12, 2006 after several months of discussions and negotiations among the consortium members. Another
important document, the Block C Agreement that will define the distribution to all parties of the revenues from the Galoc
field production, was also approved and signed during the year.

For the most part of the second semester of 2006, GPC focused on reviewing tenders, negotiating and awarding contracts
for the various aspects of the Galoc Project particularly for the drilling rig, tubulars and sub-sea facilities and production/
storage vessel. As of December 2006, GI'C was finalizing the contract for installation of subsea equipment, mooring-riser
system and process equipment,

During the first quarter of 2007, GPC continued with their preparations for the Galoc development drilling program
scheduled for the 3rd quarter of 2007. GPPC were finalizing contracts for the installation of subsea equipment. Fabrication
of the mooring-riser system and process equipment were ongoing during the first quarter of the year.

In preparation for the development drilling, GPC conducted comprehensive review, sampling and tests of existing Galoc
and Octon core and rock samples. These studies were aimed at minimizing hazards in drilling and optimizing the overall
chances of success in the drilling of the wells.

The drilling rig “Energy Searcher” arrived at the Galoc location on October 4, 2007. GPC immediately drilled the op
holes of the Galoc-3 (G3) and Galoc-4 {G4) production wells. As planned, a Pilot Hole from the Galoc-4 location was
also drilled and this confirmed both reservoir properties and presence of hydrocarbons in the southern sector of the
Galoc field as anticipated in the approved Plan of Development.

With the completion of the drilling of the G3 sidetrack-1 and G4 wells in early January 2008, the consortium concluded
the drilling activities associated with Galoc Phase 1 Development.

GI'C entered into a Crude Agency Agreement with Vitol for the marketing of their share of the Galoc production and
offered the same marketing arrangement to the other partners including the Parent Company.

The Philodril Corporation
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SC 14 C-2 West Linapacan Block

In December 2006, Framework backed out of their farm-in initiative into the West Linapacan Block. They cited as reasons
the results of the Gaffney-Cline study that point to the very high technical risks invoived in the re-activation of the
West Linapacan Field. Also, the recent changes in the top management of their technical partner PNOC-EC, whose key
persons they were initially dealing with have since resigned and been replaced, added to the already difficult course of
negotiations with a number of consortium members.

Recently, Pitkin Petroleum PLC and Pearl Oil Resources jointly submitted a farm-in proposal for West Linapacan for
them 1o earn 70% participating interest in exchange for a one well carry. The Parent Company had been authorized by
the consortium to negotiate with the farminees. The Parent Company’s counter-offer is a full carry of the West Linapacan
consortium up o first oil for 75% participating interest.

The suspension of production activities in the West Linapacan oilfields raises an uncertainty as to the realization of
unamortized cost of wells, platforms and other facilities, and deferred oil exploration costs incurred in connection with
the Parent Company’s participation in the acquisition, exploration of petroleum concessions which are dependent upon
the development of the Galoc area and other areas under Service Contract 14, as well as the ability of the different
consortia to mature certain prospects in the other contract areas.

In January 2007, Pitkin Petroleum Limited (Pitkin) submitted a farm-in proposal for the West Linapacan Block for them
1o earn 70% participating interest in exchange for carrying the farming-out parties in the drilling of one exploration
well. The Parent Company was authorized by the West Linapacan consortium to give a counter-proposal to the farminee
patterned after the Galoc deal, that is, a full carry to first oil for 75% participating interest.

At the same time that Pitkin expressed their intention to farm-in, the Parent Company also received expressions of interest
from Singapore-based Pear! Oil and Yilgarn Gold Limited of Australia to evaluate the West Linapacan Block. Eventually,
Yilgarn and Pearl Oil decided not to pursue their interest while Pitkin submitted a revised farm-in proposal for the
partners’ consideration.

The farm-in offer of Pitkin is essentially a multi-phased approach to exploring the potential of the block and developing
existing, and if found, new fields in the block. For Phase 1, the farminee offers to conduct full 3D seismic reprocessing and
interpretation, petrophysical and stratigraphic studies and reservoir engineering studies. Under Phase 2 of the proposal,
they offer to drill 1 well, conduct sub-sea inspection of the facilities, and re-certify reserves volumetrics, which are all at
the discretion of Pitkin. The proposed Phase 3 will involve the development of 1 field up to commercial “first oil”, again
the conduct of which is at the discretion of the farminee.

In a partners meeting held in April 2007, the West Linapacan consortium responded to Pitkin’s farm-in proposal and
asked for improvement on certain provisions on the terms of the offer. Principally, the partners asked for the reduction of
the time frame for the farm-in program from Pitkin’s 6 years to 3 years. The partners also asked for a 50% - 50% split in
the sharing of the historical cost account for Pitkin's pay 100% to earn 75% offer, The partners likewise asked for a similar
production bonus scheme as in the Galoc deal where the farming out parties receive bonuses at production start-up and
when cumulative production reaches specific benchmark levels.

Pitkin accepted these revisions proposed by the farmors but refused to accept liabilities for the P & A of the existing
wells, thus paving way for protracted negotiations. Finally in November 2007, the parties agreed that since Pitkin would
not share in the abandonment cost of the existing West Linapacan wells, the costs related to the drilling of these wells
amounting to approximately USD 80 MM would be excluded from the farm-in. In effect Pitkin would only share in
effectively USD 12 MM of the historical cost and this share will only be assigned 10 Pitkin upon completion of Phase 3
or effectively “first oil”.

Early this year, a full set of the final farm-in documents was circulated for execution and signing by the partners. As of
time of writing, the documents are still with Oriental Petroleum and Minerals Corporation, the last signatory.

SC41

In 2003, the SC 41 shallow and deep water areas (Block A and Block B respectively} were unitized. The Filipino Group
{as defined in the Operating Agreement} assigned to Unocal Sulu, Ltd. {Unocal}, the block operator, the excess of their
aggregate 15% participating interest in exchange for a free carry in the next exploratory drilling in the block. As a result
of the unitization and assignment, the Parent Company, which used to have a participating equity of 9.125% in Block A,
now has a 2.3229 participating interest in the entire contract area.

In early 2005, Unocal withdrew from the service contract. The other partners Sandakan Oil, BHP Billiton and TransAsia
have likewise withdrawn, leaving a small all-Filipino consortium. The continuing partners negotiated for a reduction
in its Year 8 work commitment. Under Rasic Consolidated Inc. which was designated as the lead operator, the new
consortium implemented a geological and geophysical program in lieu of a well commitment.
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in early 2006, the consortium chose Tap Oil over other candidate farminees Mitra Energy and Pearl Resources which are
both based in Singapore, and Burgundy, a local firm. Tap Oil offered to carry the farming out parties a full carry in the
costs of a full 31 seismic acquisition program and in an option well.

Tap Qil's entry into the SC 41 was formalized on June 23, 2006, the date their farm-in became effective.

Tap Oil requested and was granted approval for an extension of Contract Year 9 and Contract Year 10 as a result of delays
in the implementation of the 312 seismic commitment. The survey was eventually carried out from May 7 to July 10, 2007
using Veritas’ M/V voyager, acquiring for the consortium some 750 sq km of prime 3D data and 250 sq km of infill data.
Data processing in Singapore was completed in December 2007. Salamander bankrolied the greater part of the seismic
program as its commitment for the farm-in into $C41. Salamander and Tap Oil now hold 35% and 50% interest on the
block, respectively, with the remaining interest being shared by the Filipino partners,

Early this year, Tap Oil advised the partners of the possibility of drilling back-to-back wells starting mid-July. The Parent
Company is carried only in the drilling of the first well.

SC53

GSEC 98, Onshore Mindoro Block expired on September 23, 2003. An extension was granted the consottium to formalize
farm-in negotiations with the Philippine National Oil Company Exploration Development Corporation (PNOC-EDC).
Other firms including Laxmi Organic Industries Lid. {Laxmi) of India and Vamex of Vietnam also expressed interest the
Parent Company negotiated its continued participation in the exploration of the block as a carried partner. Only Laxmi
continued on with application for a new contract as PNOC-EC and Vamex later dropped out of the initial negotiations.
The DOE eventually awarded SC 53 to Laxmi in July 2005. The Parent Company and the operator both executed a
Participation Agreement (PA) in August 2005 which was formally approved by the DOE in February 2006.

As block Operator, Laxmi self-financed the conduct of geophysical studies which include, among others, geochemical
sampling, and satellite imagery data interpretation. The initial results validated a lot of the prospects and leads previously
identified in the Mindoro Block. These studies constituted the accomplishments of the consortium for the Sub-Phase 1
of the contract.

In June 2007, Laxmi indicated that they are withdrawing from the block and will use the requested two months extension
on 1he decision deadline to proceed to Sub-*hase 2 to farm-out as its way of exiling $C 53,

Laxmi had invited Pitkin Petroleum with whom they executed a farm-in agreement in September 2007. Pitkin offered to
pay 100% of the seismic program costs of LISD 3 MM in exchange for Pitkin earning, 70% interest and the operatorship
of the block. The Pitkin farm-in is now awaiting the DOFE's approval.

SWAN Block

Despite the inclusion of the SWAN Block in the areas bidded out by the government under the first Philippine Contracting
Round, the consortium did not receive any notification fram the DOE that they were rescinding the application. As there
was no company that bid over the area, the consortium initiated the conversion of the GSEC application into a full service
contract application.

However, the DOE granted instead new service contracts that both partially covered the area being applied for.
PNOC-EC's SC 57 and SC 58 were awarded in September 2005 and January 2006, respectively.

in January 2007, the Parent Company explored the possibility of including the SWAN Consortium in both the new
contracts through a letter to PNOC-EC. Under the proposed participation set-up, the Parent Company will get 15%
carried interest in each of SCs 57 and 58. In exchange, the Parent Company will assign to PNOC-EC 5% participating
interest in SC 14-West Linapacan Block.

PNOC-EC agreed in principle to the proposal and asked and have been granted ample time to conduct due diligence to
evaluate the merits of the proposed interest swap. For the rest of 2007, they continued with their review of the offer. To
date, however, the Company has not received any firm indication of PNOC-EC’s response.

SW Palawan

The application for a new GSEC which was earlier submitted by an all-Filipino consortium led by operator TransAsia Qil
& Energy Development Corporation, remained pending with the DOE. The block was also included in the first Philippine
Contracting Round but no company bid over the area. This application was supposed to replace the expired GSEC 64,
which counted among its members Shell Philippines Exploration B.V. (Shell). When Shell withdrew from all exploration
activities in the country, and thus from the SW "alawan block, many consortium members including TransAsia expressed
their intent not 1o participate in further exploration activities on the block.
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Despite the several wells drilled in the SW Palawan basin, no commercial discovery had been made thus far. In view of
this, the Parent Company ne longer sees any technical justification to participate in any exploration activity in the area. In
2005, the Parent Company made a provision for probable lusses on the deferred exploration costs related to SW Palawan
amounting to 4.6 million.

GSEC75

The Parent Company has signed an Option Agreement with Reliance Oil and Gas Company (ROGC), a Filipino
corporation, for an option to buy back at most a 10% participating equity in GSEC 75. ROGC has signed a farm-in
agreement with the PNOC-EDC, the current operator of the block, wherein ROGC could earn as much as 75% equity
participation for drilling up to two wells. The farm-in agreement between PNOC-EDC and ROCG did not push through.
As such, the Option Agreement between the ROGC and the Company did not materialize. In 2004, the Parent Company
made a provision for probable losses on the deferred exploration costs related 1o GSEC 75 amounting to P37.5 million,

3. Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements, which have been prepared for submission to the SEC, have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for crude oil inventory which is valued at market and AFS investments which are measured
at fair value. The financial statlements are presented in Philippine peso (Peso) which is the Parent Company's functional
currency.

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financiai Reporting Standards
(PFRS).

Changes in Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous year except for the changes in accounting
policies resulting from the following:

Adoption of Netw accounting standard, Amendment to existing accounting standard and Philippine Interpretations based on
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Compmittee (IFRIC) Interpretations, effective to the Croup beginning lanuary 1,
2007

« PERS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, introduces new disclosures to improve the information about financial
instruments. Il requires the disclosure of qualitative and quantitative information about exposure 10 risks arising
from financial instruments, including specified minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk,
as well as sensitivity analysis to market risk. It replaces the requirements in Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS)
30, Disclosure in the Financial Statements of Banks and Similar Financial Institutions, and PAS 32, Financial Statements,
Disclosure and Presentation. It is applicable to all entities that report under PFRS.

The Group adopted the amendment to the transitional provisions of PFRS 7, as approved by the Financial Reporting
Standards Council of the Philippines, which gives transitory relief with respect to the presentation of comparative
information for the new risk disclosures about the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments.
Accordingly, the Group did not need to present comparative information for the disclosures required by PFRS 7
paragraphs 31-42, unless the disclosure was previously required under PAS 30 and 32. Adoption of PFRS 7 resulted in
additional disctosures, which are included throughout the financial statements. The additional disclosures are found
in Notes 21 and 22.

« Amendment to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements: Capital Disclosures, requires the following additional
disclosures: (a) an entity’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital; (b} quantitative data about what
the entity regards as capital; (¢) whether the entity has complied with any capital requirements; and (d) if it has not
complied, the consequences of such noncompliance. The additional disclosures resulting from the adoption of the
amendment to PAS 1 are found in Note 23.

« Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 7, Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29, Financial Reporting it Hyperinflationary
Economies, provides guidance on how to apply PAS 29 when an economy first becomes hyperinflationary, in particular
the accounting for deferred income tax. This interpretation is currently not applicable to the Group as it does not
operate in a hyperinflationary environment.

+ Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 8, Scope of PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, requires PFRS 2 to be applied to any
arrangements where equity instruments are issued for consideration which appears to be less than fair value.

Annual Report 2007

THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION 23




NOTES TO CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+ Philippine Interpretation [ERIC 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives, establishes that the date to assess the existence
of an embedded derivative is the date an entity first becomes a pacty to the contract, with reassessment only if there is
a change to the contract that significanly modifies the cash flows.

+ Philippine Interpretation [FRIC 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Ipairment, prohibits the reversal of impairment on
goodwill and available-for-sale equity financial assets recognized in interim financial reports even if impairment is no
longer present at the annual balance sheet date.

The adoption of Philippine Interpretations 1FRIC 8, 9 and 10 did not have an effect to consolidated financial
statemenis.

New Accounting Standard, Amendments to Existing Standards and Interpretations Effective Subsequent to 2007
The following new [’FRS, amendments to existing PAS and Interpretations are effective subsequent to December 31,
2007

*+ PFRS 8, Operating Segments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009), requires a management
approach to reporting segment information. PFRS 8 will replace PAS 14, Segment Reporting, and is required 10 be
adopted only by entities whose debt or equity instruments are publicly traded, or are in the process of filing with
the SEC for purposes of issuing any class of instruments in a public market. The Group is currently in the process of
assessing the impact of this PFRS.

« Amendment to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2009), introduces new disclosures to aggregate information in the financial statements on the basis of shared
characteristics. It requires the following presentations: (a) all changes in equity arising from transactions with owners
are to be presented separately from non-owner changes in equity, (b} income and expenses are 1o be presented in one
statement {a statement of comprehensive income) or in two statements (a separate income statement and a statement
of comprehensive income), separately from owner changes in equity, (¢} components of other comprehensive income
to be displayed in the statement of comprehensive income and, (d} total comprehensive income to be presented in
the financial statements. The additional disclosures requited by the Amendment will be included in the consolidated
financial statements upon the effectivity of this Amendment.

s Amendment to PAS 23, Borrowing Costs (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009), eliminates
the option to immediately recognize borrowing cost as expense if they are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset, The Group is currently in the process of assessing the impact of this
amendment.

+ Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 11, PFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after March 1, 2007}, requires arrangements whereby an employee is granted rights to an entuy's
equity instruments to be accounted for as an equity-settled scheme by the entity even if (a) the entity chooses or is
required 1o buy those ¢quily instruments (e.g., treasury shares) from another party, or (b) the shareholder(s) of the
entity provide the equity instruments needed. Italso provides guidance on how subsidiartes, in their separate financial
staternents, accaunt for such schemes when the subsidiary’s employees receive rights 1o the equity instruments of the
parent. The Group currently does not have any stock option plan and therefore, does not expect this Interpretation to
have a significant impact to its consolidated financial statements when adopted.

* Philippine Interpretation 1IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2008), covers contractual arrangements arising from private entities providing public services. The
Group expects that the adoption of this Interpretation will not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements as it does not have service concession arrangenients,

+ Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13, Custonier Loyalty Prograntmes (effective for annual periods beginning on or after July
1, 2008}, requires loyalty credits 1o be accounted for as a separate component of the sales transaction in which they are
granted. The Group currently does not have such programs and expects that the adoption of this Interpretation will
not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements.

« Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 14, The Limit on « Defined Benefit Asser, Minimum Funding Requirement and their
Interaction (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2008), provides guidance on how to assess
the limit on the amount of surplus in a defined benefit scheme that can be recognized as an asset under PAS 19,
Employee Benefits. The Group expects that the adoption of this Interpretation will not have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of Consalidation

The consolidated financial statements consist of the financial staterments as of Decernber 31, 2007 of the Parent Company
and its newly acquired, wholly-owned subsidiary, PGO.
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Acquisition of PGO

On May 2, 2007, the Parent Company acquired 100% of the shares of PGO, an entity which have participating interests in
various oil properties in the Philippines and has not yet started commercial operations as of the said date. At acquisition
date, PGO has only one asset which is the deferred oil exploration costs related to participating interests held and has a
carrying value P31.9 million. Since there was no fair value available for this type of asset, the Parent Company assumed
that the carrying value is the asset’s fair value and carried the same in its consolidated financial statements. The purchase
price for the net asset acquired is P32.6 million which resulied to a goodwill of P0.6 million. The Parent Company
immediately impaired this goodwill at the acquisition date.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date control is transferred to the Parent Company directly or through the
holding companies. Control is achieved where the Parent Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity 5o as to obtain benefits from its activities. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of income from the date of acquisition ar up to the date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances. Inter-company balances and transactions, including inter-company profits and unrealized profits
and losses, are eliminated. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Parent Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date such control ceases.

Cash
Cash consists of cash on hand and with banks.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets are categorized as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {FVPL), Joans and receivables, held-
to-maturity {HTM} investments, and AFS investments, as appropriate. Financial liabilities are categorized as financial
liabilities at FVPL and other financial liabilities at amortized cost.

Daie of recognition

The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated balance sheet when it becomes a party
1o the contractual provisions of the instrument. IPurchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on the settlement date.

tnitial recognition and classification of financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration given {in case of an
asset) or received (in case of a liability). The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at
FVPL, includes transaction cost.

On initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: HTM investments, AFS
investments, FVPL financial assets, and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
investments are acquired and whether they are quoted in an active market. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition and, where altowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every
reporting date.

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability are
reported as expense or income. Distributions 1o halders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly
to equity net of any related income tax benefits.

Determination of fair values

"The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by reference
to quoted market prices (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction from
wransaction costs at the close of business on the balance sheet date. When current bid and asking prices are not available,
the price of the most recent transaction is used since it provides evidence of current fair value as long as there has not been
a significant change in economic circumstances since the time of transaction.

For investments and all other financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using
generally acceptable valuation techniques. Such techniques include using arm’s length market transactions; reference to
the current market value of another instrument, which is substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis and other
valuation models.

Day 1 Profit

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different to the fair value from other observable current market
transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from
observable market, the Group recognizes 1he difference between the transaction price and fair value (a Day 1 profit) in
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the consolidated statement of income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where use is
made of data which is not observable, the difference between the transaction price and mode value is only recognized in
the consolidated statement of income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For
each transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1’ profit amount.

Financial Assets or Financial Liabilities at FVPL
Financial assets or financial liabilities at FVPL include financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading and those
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL.

Trading instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term, Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments or a financial guarantee contract. Dividends, interests, and gains or losses
on financial instruments held for trading are recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading, comprising financial instruments held for trading other than
derivatives, are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value, interest and dividend
income or expense are recognized in consolidated statement of income, according to the terms of the contract, or when
the right to the payment has been established.

The Group as of December 31, 2007, and the Company as of December 31, 2006, has no (inancial assets or financial
liabilities classified as held for trading.

Financial instruments designated on initial recognition as at FVPL

Financial instruments may be designated at initial recognition as at FVPLif the foltowing criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
recognizing the gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the assets are part of a group of financial assets which
are managed and their performance evaluated on fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) the financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or if it is clear, with little of no analysis, that it would not be separately recorded.

The Group as of December 31, 2007, and the Company as of December 31, 2006 has no financial assets or financial
liabilities designated as at FVPL.

Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is separated from the host financial or non-financial contract and accounted for as a derivative
if all of the following conditions are met:

* theeconomic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristic
of the host contract;

* a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative;
and

* the hybrid or combined instrument is not recognized at FVPL.

The Group assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from host contracts when the Group first
becomes party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.

Embedded derivatives that are bifurcated from the host contracts are accounted for either as financial assets or financial
liabilities at F¥PL. Changes in fair values are included in the consolidated statement of income.

The Group as of December 31, 2007, and the Company as of December 31, 2006, has no embedded derivatives.

HTM Investments

HTM investments are quoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
for which the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Where the Group sells
other than an insignificant amount of HTM investments, the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as AFS
investments. After initial measurement, these HTM investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method, less any impairment in value.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes transaction
costs and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated
statement of income when the investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.
Assets under this category are classified as current assets if maturity is within 12 months otherwise these are classified as
non-current assets.
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The Group as of December 31, 2007, and the Company as of December 31, 2006, has no HTM investments.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the effective inierest rate
and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of income when the loans and receivables are
derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process. These financial assets are included in current
assets if maturity is within twelve months from the balance sheet date. Otherwise, these are classified as non-current
assets.

The Group as of December 31, 2007, and the Company as of December 31, 2006, has loans and receivables consisting of
cash in bank, receivables and advances to related companies.

AFS Investments_

AFS investments are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as AFS or are not classified in any of the three
other categories. The Group designates financial instruments as AFS if they are purchased and held indefinitely and may
be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions. After initial recognition, AFS investments
are measured at fair value with unrealized gains or losses being recognized directly in equity as “Unrealized valuation
losses on AFS investments”.

When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gains or losses previcusly recorded in equity are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income. Interest earned on the investments is reported as interest income using the effective
interest rate method. Dividends earned on investments are recognized in the consolidated statement of income as
‘Dividends income’ when the right of payment has been established. The Group considers several factors in making a
decision on the eventual disposal of the investment, The major factor of this decision is whether or not the Group will
experience inevitable further losses on the investment. These financial assets are classified as noncurrent assets unless the
intention is to dispose of such assets within twelve months from the balance sheet date.

Note 9 discusses details of the Parent Company’s AFS investments as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,

Other Einancial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities at amortized cost are initially recorded at fair value, less directly attributable transaction costs.
After initial recognition, interesi-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculaled by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or
premium on setlement. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the amortization process.

The Group as of December 31, 2007, and the Company as of December 31, 2006, has other financial liabilities consisting
of trade and other payables, advances from related companies, dividends payable, long-term debt, and subscriptions
payable.

Offsetting Financial Instrunients

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and setile the liability simulianeously.

Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognized when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

« the Group retains the right 1o receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

+ the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured a1 the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Annual Report 2007

THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION 27



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or has expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different werms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred afiter the initial recognition of
the asset {(an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or evenis) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the contracted parties or a group of contracted parties is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization, and where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked 1o and must be settled by delivery
of such an unquoted equity instrument has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return of a similar financial asset.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortized cost has been incurred,
the amount of loss is measured as a difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset
shall be reduced through the use of an aliowance account. The amount of loss is recognized in the consolidated statement
of income.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no
objective evidence of impatrment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset
is included in the group of financial assets with similar credit risk and characteristics and that group of financial assets is
collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues 10 be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment,

[f, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income, to the extent that the
carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

AFS investments
For AFS investments, the Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

In case of equity investments classified as AFS investments, this would include a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the investments below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognized in the consolidated statement of income is removed from equity and recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.

[mpairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the consolidated statement of income. Increases in fair
value after impairment are recognized directly in equity.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS investments, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as
financial assets carried at amortized cost. Interest continues 1o be accrued at the original effective interest rate on the
reduced carrying amount of the asset and is recorded as part of 'interest income’ in the consolidated statement of income.
if subsequently, the fair value of a debt instrument increased and the increase can be objectively related to an event
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occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the conselidated statement of income, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated statement of income,

Crude Qil Inventory
Crude oil inventory is valued at market.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depletion, depreciation and amortization and any impairment
in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of such property and equipment when that cost is incurred and the
recognition criteria are met.

The initial cost of property and equipment, other than wells, platforms and other facilities, comprises its purchase price,
including taxes and any directly aitributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into aperation, such as repairs and
maintenance, are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the period the costs are incurred. [n situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of
performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional cost of property and equipment.

The carrying amount of the replaced part regardless of whether the reptaced part had been depreciated separately
is derecognized if an entity recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property and equipment the cost of a
replacement for part of the item. If it is not practicable for an entity to determine the carrying amount of the replaced
part, it may use the cost of the replacement as an indication of what the cost of the replaced part was at the time it was
acquired or constructed.

When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the item of property and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

Depletion of wells, platforms and other facilities are provided on a field basis under the unit-of-production method
based upon estimates of proved reserves. The depletion base includes the estimated future devetopment cost of the
undeveloped reserves.

Depreciation of other property and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follows:

Number of
Years
Office condominium units and improvements 20
Transportation equipment 5
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 3

The assets” useful lives and depletion, depreciation and amortization methods are reviewed periodically to ensure that
the periods and methods are consistent with the expected patiern of economic benefits from items of property and
equipment,

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost, related accumulated depletion, depreciation and amortization,
and any allowance for impairment are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposals is
recognized in consolidated statement of income.

Impairment or losses of items of property and equipment, related claims for or payments of compensation from third
parties and any subsequent purchase or construction of replacement assets are separate economic events and are
accounted for separately.

[nvestments in Associates

Associates arc all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% to 50% of the voting rights, Investments in associates are accounted for under the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognized at cost.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognized in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amoum of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated o the extent of the Group's interest
in the associates. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

The Parent Company’s associates’ and the related proportionate interest on them are as follows:

PentaCapital Investments Corporation (PentaCapital) 40.00
PentaCapital Holdings, Inc. (Penta Holdings) 13.76

The Parent Company has significant influence over the financial and operating policies of Penta Holdings, and thus,
deemed as the Parent Company’s associates.

Interest in Jointly Controlled Assets

[nterest in jointly controlled assets is accounted for by recognizing in the consolidated financial statements the Group's
share in the jointly controlled assets and included principally in the “Property and equipment” and “Deferred oil
exploration cosis” accounts in the consolidated balance sheet and any liabilities incurred jointly with the other venturers
as well as the related revenues and expenses of the joint venture. The Group also recognizes the expenses which it has
incurred in respect of its interest in the joint venture and the related liabilities.

Deferred Qil Exploration Costs

The Group follows the full cost method of accounting for exploration costs determined on the basis of each SC/GSEC
area. Under this method, all exploration costs relating to each SC/GSEC are deferred pending determination of whether
the contract area contains oil and gas reserves in commercial quantities. The exploration costs relating to the SC/GSEC
area where oil and gas in commercial quantities are discovered are subsequently capitalized as “Wells, platforms and
other facilities” shown under the “Property and equipment” account in the balance sheet upon commercial production.
‘When the SC/GSEC is permanently abandoned or the Group has withdrawn from the consortium, the related deferred
oil exploration costs are written-off. SCs and GSECs are considered permanently abandoned if the SCs and GSECs have
expired and/or there are no definite plans for further exploration and/or development.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of
replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and
excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an investment property. Following initial recognition, investment properties
are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed, permanently withdrawn from use or when
no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the year of retirement or disposal,

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by ending of owner-
occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of construction or development. Transfers
are made from investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of
owner-occupation or commencement of developmem with a view 10 sale.

Impairment of Noncurrent, Nonfinancial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses of
continuing operations are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. 1f that is the case the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depletion and depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior
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years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of income unless the asset is carried at revalued amount,
in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted
in future periods 1o allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its
remaining useful life.

Foreign Currency-Denominated Transactions and Translations

ltems included in financial statements of the Group are neasured using the currency that best reflects the economic
substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Group. Transactions in foreign currencies are
recorded using the applicable exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Qutstanding monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated using the applicable closing functional currency exchange rate at
the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains or losses arising from foreign currency-denominated transactions and
translations are recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of goods
Revenue from petroleum operations is recognized as income at the time of production.

Rental income
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the related lease terms.

Initerest income
Interest is recognized as it accrues taking into account the effective yield on the asset.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs generally are expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to
prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized
until the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recorded.

Pension Benefits

Pension Obligations

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. The post-
employment benefit paid to all employees in the Group qualifies as a post-employment defined benefit plan.

Pension liability recognized in the consolidated balance sheet comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or
losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credit cost method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity which approximate the terms of the related retirement
liability.

Cumulative actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions in excess
of the greater of 10.00% of the value of plan assets or 10.00% of the defined benefit obligation are spread to income over
the employees’ expected average remaining working lives.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in income, unless the changes to the retirement plan are conditional on the
employees remaining in service for a specified period of time {the vesting period). In this case, the past service costs are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

Operating Leases

Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating
leases. [nitial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
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The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and
requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Income Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected 10 be
recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tax laws used o compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted as of the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is recognized on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred income tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, and carryforward benefits of the excess of minimum corporate
income tax {MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax {RCIT) and net operating loss carryover (NOLCQ), to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, excess
of MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to
be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred income tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and 1ax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate 1o the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
{b) itis probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
{c) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Earnings (Loss)_Per Common Share

Basic earnings (loss) per common share are computed by dividing net income (loss) for the year by the weighied average
number of common shares issued and outstanding during the year, after retroactive adjustments for any stock dividends
declared.

Business Segments
For management purposes, the Group is considered one operating segment, which is the petroleum operation.

Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group's position at the balance sheet date {adjusting
events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements when material,

4, Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The Group'’s financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS require management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and related notes. The judgments, estimates
and assumptions used in the consolidated financial statements are based upon management's evaluation of relevant facts
and circumstances as of the date of the Group's financial statements. Actual results could differ from such estimates.
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Judgments

Determination of functional currency

The Parent Company, based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances, has determined its functional
currency to be the Peso. The Peso is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Parent Company
operates.

Classification of financial instruments

The Group exercises judgment in determining the category of financial instruments in accordance with PAS 39. The Group
classifies a financial instrument, or its components, on initial recognition as a financial Hability, a financial asset or an
equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial
liability, a financial asset or an equity instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form,
governs its classification in the Group's consolidated balance sheet.

The Group determines the category at initial recognition and re-evaluates this classification, where allowed and
appropriate, at every reporting date.

Classification of leases

The Parent Company has entered into commercial property leases on its invesiment property portfolio. The Parent
Company has determined that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and has
classified the leases as operating leases.

Estimation Uncertainties

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses on a regular basis if there is objective evidence of impairment of loans and receivables. The amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The Group uses specific impairment on its loans
and receivables. The Group did not assess its loans and receivables for collective impairment due to the few counterparties
which can be specifically identified. The amount of loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income with a
corresponding reduction in the carrying value of the loans and receivables through an allowance account.

Total carrying value of loans and receivables amounted to P64.7 million and P113.5 million as of December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively. Allowance for impairment on these financial assets amounted to P12.7 millicn as of December
31, 2007 and 2006 (see Notes 5 and 16).

Impairment of AFS investments

Animpairment issue arises with respect to AFS investments when there is objective evidence of impairment, which involves
significant judgment. In applying this judgment, the Group evaluates the financial health of the issuer, among others. In
the case of AFS equity instruments, the Group expands its analysis to consider changes in the issuer's industry and sector
performance, legal and regulatory framework, changes in technology and other factors that affect the recoverability of the
Group's investments, Fair value of AFS investments amounted to P126.1 million and P128.1 million as of December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. No impairment tosses were recognized in bath 2007 and 2006 (sec Note M.

Realizability of deferred income tax assets

The Group reviews deferred tax assets at each balance sheet date and recognize these to the extent that itis probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available 1o allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Deferred income tax
assets have not been recognized since management believes that the carry forward benefit would not be realized prior to
its expiration. The amount of unrecognized deferred income tax assets amounted o P94.9 million and P117.2 million as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively (see Note 20).

Estimation of proven reserves

P’roven reserves are estimated by reference to available reservoir and well information, including production and pressure
trends for producing reservoirs and, in some cases, subject to definitional limits, to similar data from other producing
reservoirs. Proven reserves eslimates are atiributed to future development projects only where there is a significant
commitment to project funding and execution and for which applicable governmental and regulatory approvals have
been secured or are reasanably certain to be secured. All proven reserve estimates are subject to revision, either upward or
downward, based on new information, such as from development drilling and production activities or from changes in
economic [actors, including product prices, contract terms or development plans.

Estimates of reserves for undeveloped or partially developed fields are subject to greater uncertainty over their future life
than estimates of reserves for fields that are substaniially developed and depleted. As a field goes into production, the
amount of proven reserves will be subject to future revision once additional information becomes available. As those
fields are further developed, new information may lead to revisions.
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As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the net bock value of wells, platforms and other facilities amounted to P269.4
million and P270.1 million, respectively (see Note 7).

Pension and other pension benefits

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other benefits is determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial
valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases,
mortality rates and future pension increases.

While management believes that its assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in actual
experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the Group's pension and other retirement
obligations. The Group recognized pension expense amounting to P3.4 million in 2007, P1.4 million in 2006 and P1.3
million in 2005 and related pension liability amounted to P3.5 million and P1.0 million as of December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively {see Note 19). Unrecognized actuarial gains amounted 1o $9.0 million and P13.6 million as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Estimation of useful lives of property and equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment based on the period over which assets are expected to
be available for use. The estimated useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if
expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal
or other limits on the use of the assets. In addition, the estimation of the useful lives of property and equipment is based
on collective assessment of internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that
future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in the factors
and circumstances mentioned above. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the net book value of property and equipment
amounted to P278.0 million and P281.3 million, respectively (see Note 7).

Impairment of noncurrent, nonfinancial assets

The Group assesses whether there are indications of impairment on its noncurrent, nonfinancial assets, at least on an
annual basis, If there indications of impairment exisy, impaitment testing is performed. This requires an estimation of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating units 1o which the assets belong. Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. In 2007, the Company recognized impairment loss on the
goodwill related to the acquisition of PGO as a subsidiary which amounted to P0.6 million. No impairment losses were
Tecognized in 2006.

Valuation of Unquoted Equity Securities Classified as AFS investments

Management believes that while the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant, the probabilities of the various
estimates cannot be reasonably assessed given the unquoted nature of these equity investments. As a result, the Group
carries these financial assets at cost, less any impairment in vaiue (Note 9). The carrying amount of unquoted equity
securities amounted to P10.9 million and P12.8 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

5. Receivables
Consolidated Entity
2007 2006
Accounts with contract operator {Note 6) P34,527,270 P23,726,923
Accrued interest (Note 16) 21,393,883 50,676,240
Dividends 2,250,000 2,250,000
Advances to officers and employees 1,604,305 1,849,050
Accounts with partners (Note 6) 679,193 1,842,599
Others 4,086,374 5,370,650
64,541,025 85,715,462
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 7,105,839 7,105,839
P57,435,816 P?78.609,623

Accounts with contract operator represent the excess of proceeds from crude oil liftings over the amounts advanced by
the contract operator for the Parent Company's share in exploration, development and production expenditures relating
to SC 14 as mentioned in Note 2.

Accounts with partners represent the Parent Company’s share in the exploration, development and production
expenditures in the SCs and GSECs mentioned in Note 2 advanced by the Group, net of cash contributions.

Dividends receivable represents the Parent Company’s share in the dividends declared by Penta Holdings.
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The following is a rollforward of the allowance for doubtful accounts recognized in Parent Company’s accrued interest

and other receivables:

2007 2006
Balances at beginning of year P7,105.839 P3,678,279
Provision - 3,427,560
Balances at end of year P7,105,839 P7,105,839

The Parent Company did not assess its receivables for collective impairment. More details were provided on Notes 21

and 22.

G. Interest in Jointly Controlled Assets

The I"arent Company's interest in the jointly controlled assets in the various $Cs and GSECs and any liabilities incurred
joinly with the other venturers, as well as the related revenues and expenses of the venture, which are included in the

financial statements, are as follows:

2007 2006
Current assets:
Receivables:
Accounts with contract operator P34,527,270 20,299,363
Account with partners 679,193 1,842,599
35,206,463 22,141,962
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment - net
Wells, platform and other facilities 562,631,804 562,631,804

Less accumulated depletion, depreciation and amortization (293,279,144} (292,484,613)
269,352,660 270,147,191
Deferred oil exploration costs 839,696,430 807,168,493
1,109,049,090 1,077,315,684
P1,144,255,553 P1,099,457,646
Current liabilities:
Trade and other payables:
Trade P10,497,962 *14,204,857
Others 326,885 1,099,343
P10,824,847 15,304,200
Revenues:
Share in petroleum operations P 168,952,006 147,043,008
Foreign exchange gains - net 512,085 945,540
169,464,091 147,988,548
Share in cost and expenses petroleum operations:
Production costs 121,415,322 89,132,887
Depletion 794,531 578,056
122,209,853 89,710,943
P47,254,238 158,277,605
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7. Property and Equipment

As of December 31, 2007

Wells, Platforms and Qther Facilities

5C14 Block C, D, Office Office
Tara, Libro, SC 14 condominium furniture,
Galoe, Verde Block A, units and Transportation  fixtures and
and Deepwater Band B-1 improvements equipment equipment Total
Cost:
Ralances at beginning of year  P273,687,005 P288,944,799 P10,774,461 P10,277,196  P10,827,505 P594,510,966
Additions - - - - 470,484 470,484
Disposals - - (5,349,460} - {20,990} (5,370,450)
Balances at end of year 273,687,005 288,944,799 5,425,001 10,277,196 11,276,999 589,611,000
Accumulated depletion,
depreciation and amortization
Balances at beginning of year 12,285,641 280,198,972 10,227,541 655,607 9,794,935 313,162,756
Depletion, depreciation and
amortization expense for the year - 794,531 244,231 2,055,439 588,831 3,683,032
Disposals - - {5.212,164) - (20,990)  (5,233,154)
Balances at end of vear 12,285,641 280,993,503 5,259,608 2,711,106 10,362,776 311,612,634
Net book value P261,401,364 P7.951,296 P165,393 P7,566,090 P914,223 P277,998,366
As of December 31, 2006
Wells, Platforms and Other Facilities
§C14 Block C, I, Office Office
Tara, Libro, SC 14  condeminium {urniture,
Galoc, Verde Block A, unitsand  Transportation  fixtures and
and Deepwater B and B-1 improvements equipment equipment Total
Cost:
Balances at beginning of year P297,545,203 P288,944,799 P10,774,461 P6,035308  P10,678,176  PG613,977,947
Additions - - - 10,277,196 636,329 10,913,525
Write-offs (23,858,198) - - - - (23,858,198)
Disposals - - - (6.035,308) (487.000) (6,522,308)
Balances at end of year 273,687,005 288,944,799 10,774,461 10,277,196 10,827,505 594,510,966
Accumulated depletion,
depreciation and amortization
Balances at beginning of year 12,285,641 279,620,916 5,688,818 6,035,308 9,926,822 317,557,505
Depletion, depreciation and
amortization expense for the year - 578,056 538,723 655,667 355,113 2,127,559
Disposals - - - (6,035,308} (487.000) (6,522,308)
Balances at end of year 12,285,641 280,198,972 10,227,541 655,667 9,794,935 313,162,756
Net book value P261,401,364 15,745,827 546,920 £9,621,529 P1,032,570  P281,348,210

As discussed in Note 2, the temporary suspensions of the production and operation activities in the West Linapacan block
raise uncertainties as to the realization of deferred exploration costs which is dependent upon additional discoveries of

oil reserves, among others.

8. Investments in Associates

Investments in Associates

The details of investments in associates catried under the equity method follow:

Consolidated Entity

2007 2006

Balances at beginning of year P203,337,072 P929,398,112
Equity in net earnings for the year 8,280,014 5,796,937

Disposal of EPHI shares:

Cost of disposed shares - (285,559,241}
Accumulated equity - (151,438,128}
Share in revaluation increment - (294,860,608}
Balances at end of year P211,617,086 P203,337,072
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Following are the summarized financial information of EPHI, PentaCapital and Penta Holdings (in thousands):

2007 2006

Penta Penta Penta Penta

Capital  Holdings EPHI Capital  Holdings

Revenues P89,151 P22,010 P1,587,373 P82,487 P9,208
Income before other income {expenses) 27,229 4,521 474,036 22,989 92129
Net income 18,940 5117 638,617 15,295 9,113
Total assets 594,534 519,035 21,295,963 528,517 381,884
Investments and advances 242,674 223,252 15,008,676 382,300 274,225
Property and equipment 19,953 143,970 39,246 39,333 -
Toual Habilities 39,603 146,104 6,598,683 50,479 77

EPH!

EPHI was incorporated and registered with the SEC on October 21, 1987 to acquire, own, develop, subdivide, sell, mortgage,
exchange, lease or hold for investment real estate of all kinds. EPHI's revenue consists primarily of its rental income from the
lease of its properties,

In June and July 2006, investments in EPHI were sold through the local stock exchange at one (P1.00) peso per share. It
resulted 10 a loss on disposal of shares of P195.6 million.

PentaCapital

PentaCapital is a domestic investment house incorporated and registered with the SEC on Seprember 8, 1993. PentaCapital
offers comprehensive financial products and investment alternatives to clients; sponsors and facilitates capital formation
from both domestic and foreign sources for the creation, expansion and modernization of commercial, industrial and
agricultural enterprises; provides financial, technical, managerial and administrative assistance in the acquisition of
ownership over investments, shares and securities; and engages in general financial and securities brokerage/dealership.
PentaCapital’s income consists mainly of syndication, consultancy and professional fees.

1n 2007, the report of independent auditors on PentaCapital’s financial statements were qualified due to the following:

a, PentaCapital Group has not obtained an actuarial valuation report from an independent actuary as prescribed by
PAS 19, Employee Benefits. Due to the absence of an actuarial valuation, the amount of retirement expense and the
required comparative disclosures cannot be properly determined.

b. PentaCapital’s investment in subsidiaries and associate with Penta Capital Realty Corporation (PCRC) and PCHI
amounted to P60.3 million and P121.2 million, respectively for which the report of the other auditors expressed
an unqualified opinion. The independent auditors of PentaCapital were not able 1o perform sufficient additional
procedures regarding the financial information audited by the other auditors. Furthermore, the independent auditors
were not able to satisfy themselves as to the accuracy and correct valuation of the investment in subsidiaries and
associate since they have not been tested for any possible impairment losses.

In 2006, the report of independent auditors on PentaCapital’s financial statements were qualified due to the following:

a. Determination of the amount of retirement expense and its required disclosures were not ascertained due to the
absence of an actuarial valuation;

b. Accrual for accumulated vacation and sick leave credits was not booked which would have resulied to the decrease in
net income of 0.3 million in 2006;

¢. Nonimpairment testing of investment in associates, loans and receivables;

d. Inability of PentaCapiial to account for the beginning balances and goodwill of its investment in subsidiaries using
the equity method;

Inability of PentaCapital to account for the increase in other assets and retained earnings amounting to 5.6 million;

f. Adjustment in 2006 for the effects of the adoption of PAS 40, Investment Property, by a credit to current operations of
P7.6 million, net of deferred income tax and depreciation from January 1, 2004; and

g. Accumulated net foreign exchange losses pertaining to prior years were charged to current operations. Net income
would have been decreased by P(.9 million in 2006.

In 2005 and 2004, the reports of other auditors on PentaCapital’s financial statements were qualified due to the
following;

a. Nonrecognition of the assumption of past due receivables from a certain customer of PentaCapital Finance Corporation,
a subsidiary, amounting to 1.0 million in 2005 and P2.5 million in 2004;

b. Nenrecognition of provision for probable losses on past due loan to a certain entity amounting to P0.6 million and
P2.2 million, net of possible collection, in 2005 and 2004, respectively;
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¢. Recognition of management fee when cash is received rather than when earned resulting to overstatement of income
recognized by P1.6 million in 2005 and P2.3 million in 2004;

d. Direct charge to retained earnings of current year expenses amounting to 2.4 million in 2005; and

e. Nonimpairment testing of goodwill acquired in a business combination amounting to P10.5 million as of December
31, 2005 and 2004.

The net effect of the above matters would have decreased PentaCapital’s net income by P21.7 million in 2006, net of tax
effect, had PentaCapital followed PFRS. For purposes of applying the equity method of accounting, the Company adjusted
the financial statements of PentaCapital to conform with generally accepted accounting principles. The adjustment
decreased the Company’s net income by P8.7 million in 2006 and increased net loss by 6.8 million in 2004. [n 2007,
the independent auditors of PentaCapital did not quantify the effect of qualification of the opinion.

The adjustments on PentaCapital’s accumulated equity in net earnings and correspondingly on the Company’s investment
and equity in the net earnings of PentaCapital have no effect on the taxable income of current and prior years,

Penta Holdings
Penta Holdings was incorporated on June 26, 1996 primarily to engage in various real estate, financial and securities
transactions. Penta Holdings' revenues consist mainly of interest income from short-term investments.

9. AFS Investments
The details of AFS investments in 2007 and 2006 are as follows:
Consolidated Entity
2007 2006
Investments in quoted shares of stock of:
United Paragon Mining Corporation {UPMC) P54,133,101 P5,452,970
Atlas Consolidated Mining and Development Corporation 43,726,102 30,295,942
Fil-Estate Land, Inc. 4,719,988 3,319,552
Camp fohn Hay Golf Club Inc. 4,420,000 5,100,000
South China Resources, Inc. 4,251,039 2,156,948
Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corporation (VIMC) 3,988,200 13,153,694
APHC 13,440 55,858,880
Others - unquoted shares of stock 10,877,814 12,803,893
P126,129,684 P128,141,879
AFS investments in quoted shares of stock are carried at fair value with cumulative changes in fair values presented as
a separate account in equity. Meanwhile, AFS investments in unquoted shares of stock are carried at cost because fair
value bases (i.e., quoted market prices) are not readily available nor is there an alternative basis of deriving a reasonable
valuation as of balance sheet date.
During 2007, the Parent Company, sold various AFS investments at various dates, with a total cost of P57.8 million and a
gain on sale of P0.98 million was recognized in the 2007 consolidated statement of income.
Furthermore, the Parent Company converted its receivables from UPMC into shares of stock of the latter. The Parent
Company classified this as AFS investments and valued at fair value at conversion date (see Note 16).
The following table illustrates the movement of the “Unrealized valuation losses on AFS investments” account;
2007 2006
At beginning of year P32,807,262 P129,737,028
Net unrealized valuation gains (losses) of
AFS investments 12,271,433 (46,929,766)
Realization of fair value adjustment through sale (7,203,231} -
At end of year P87,875,464 P82,807,262
10.  Deferred Qil Exploration Costs
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The full recovery of the deferred oil exploration costs incurred in connection with the Group's participation in the
acquisition, exploration of petroleum concessions is dependent upon the discovery of oil and gas in commercial quantities
from the respective petroleum concessions and the success of the future development thereof.
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As discussed in Note 2, the Parent Company no longer sees any technical justification to participate in any exploration
activity in SW Palawan block. In view of this, the Parent Company made a provision for probable losses on the exploration
activity in the area amounting to P4.6 million in 2005.

In 2007, the deferred oil exploration costs account increased by P31.9 million due to the participating interests from PGO
(sce Note 2).

11.  Loans ayable
Loans payable pertain to the Parent Company's loan with Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation (RCBC) with a balance
amounting to P21.4 million as of December 31, 2006. In 2006, the loans with RCBC were redenominated from US
Dollars to Philippine pesos which resulted to a gain recognized by the Company amounting to P 1.0 million. On February
15, 2007, the Parent Company fully settled its loans payable with RCBC.
Interest on the RCBC loan is based on fixed prevailing bank rate a1 11% in 2006. Interest expense pertaining to this loan
in 2006 amounted to P2.1 million.
12. Trade and Other Payables
Consolidated Entity
2007 2006
Trade (Note 6} P10,498,983 P14,204,857
Accrued interest (Notes 13 and 16) 7,881,615 14,913,802
Accounts with partners (Note 6) 326,885 1,099,343
Others 2,650,748 778,334
P21,358,231 P30,996.336
Accounts with partners represent the Parent Company’s share in the exploration, development and production
expenditures in the $Cs and GSECs mentioned in Note 2, advanced for the Parent Company by other partners, net of
cash payments.
13. Long-term Debt

Consolidated Entity

2007 2006

PentaCapital (Note 16} P45,000,000 P25,000,000
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Co. (MBTC) 43,724,515 55,724,515
P88,724,515 P80,724,515

MBTC

On November 22, 2006, based on the existing loan, MBTC agreed to amend the terms and conditions of the Parent
Company’s outstanding obligation. Based on the amended terms of the loan, interest rate shall be reduced from 12.5%
10 10% for remaining term of the loan. In addition, the MBTC and the Parent Company agreed that the Parent Company
shall pay a monthly principal amortization of 1.0 million from November 2006 to November 2007 and make a balloon
payiment of P44.7 million at the end of the term, December 26, 2007.

On December 21, 2007, MBTC approved the further restructuring of the Parent Company's principal loan obligation. The
following are the new terms and conditions based on the restructuring agreement:

+ Principal amount of P43.7 million
+ [ayable within 1 year
+ Interest rate of 109 fixed for the entire term

+ Interest is payable monthly in arrears and the principal is 1.0 million a month with ballcon payment estimated
amount of $32.7 million at the end of the term.

« Collateralized by two commercial vacant lots

+ Payment of P1.0 million on December 26, 2007 to partially settle the principal obligation and full updating of interest
due.

The two commeercial vacant lots as collateral for the restructured loan are owned by an affiliate.
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PentaCapital

In December 2004, the Parent Company entered into an agreement with PentaCapital to obtain a loan amounting to
P85.0 million which was subsequently reduced to P50.0 million. The 1otal loan drawn is payable on or before January 15,
2006 and bears interest of 15% per annum for the first drawdown and is subject to monthly repricing beginning February
15, 2005. On January 15, 2006, the Company and PentaCapital renewed the loan for one year to mature on January 15,
2007. The loan is secured by a pledge of the shares of stock of PentaCapital and Penta Holdings owned by the Company.
As of December 31, 2006, the Company had drawn F25.0 million from this facility. Subsequently, on January 15, 2007,
the Company and PentaCapital agreed to re-extend the loan for one year maturing on January 10, 2008. As of December
27, 2007, the Company availed an additional P20.0 million from the loan facility. The maturity of the loan facility was
further extended to June 30, 2008.

14.
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Equity
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Parent Company has an authorized capital stock of P155 billion,

On March 22, 2006, the BOD amended its Articles of Incorporation to declassify its shares of stock and to change the
par value of the Parent Company’s shares of stock from P1.00 per share to P0.01 per share which was granted by SEC on
November 29, 2006. Prior to the amendment, the Parent Company had two classes of shares that enjoy the same rights
and privileges except that Class A shares shall be issued solely to Philippine nationals while Class B shares may be issued
to either Philippine or foreign nationals. The Parent Company has a tetal of 9,540 shareholders in 2007 and 10,587
shareholders in 2006.

The details and changes in the Parent Company’s issued and subscribed shares follow:

On issued shares

2007 2006
Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
Issued:
Common
Balances at beginning of year 152,763,286,100 P1,527,632,861 - P-
Declassification of shares - - 148,207,337,900 1,482,073,379
Issuance of shares 155,443,089 1,554,431 4,555,948,200 45,559,482
Balances at end of year 152,918,729,189 1,529,187,292 152,763,286,100  1,527,632,861

Common Class A
Balances at beginning of year - 882,934,428 882,934,428
Declassification of shares - (882,934,428) (882,934,428)
Balances at end of year - - - -
Commeon Class B
Balances at beginning of year - 599,138,951 599,138,951
Declassification of sharesg - - (599,138,951} (599,138,951}
Balances at end of year - - - -
152,918,729,189 P1,529,187,292 152,763,286,100 P1,527,632,861

On subscribed shares

2007 2006
Number of Shares Amount  Number of Shares Amount
Subscribed:
Common
Balances at beginning of year 731,115,500 P7,311,155 - P-
Declassification of shares - - 5,287.063,700 52,870,637
Issuance of shares (154,800,402) {1,548,004)  (4.555,948.200) (45,559.482)
Balances at end of year 576,315,098 5,763,151 731,115,500 7,311,155
Common Class A
Balances at beginning of year - - 35,633,275 35,633,275
Declassification of shares - - {35.633.275) (35,633,275)
Balances at end of vear - - - -
Common Class B
Balances at beginning of year - - 17,237,362 17,237,362
Declassification of shares - - (17,237,362} {17,237,362)
Balances at end of vear - - - -
576,315,098 P5,763,151 731,115,500 P7,311,155
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In May 2006, the Parent Company and VIMC entered into a deed of absolute assignment whereby VIMC assigned and
transferred 40,712,557 of the Company’s shares owned by VIMC back to the Parent Company by way of dacion en pago
in settlement of the VIMC's obligation to the Parent Company amounting to P40.7 million.

In the same year, the Parent Company sold the shares received from VIMC through a stock broker for about P42.3
million. The excess of the proceeds over the cost of the said shares amounting to P 1.6 million was recognized as paid in
capital from sale of treasury shares part of equity.

15. Earnings {Loss) Per Share
Consolidated Entity
2007 2006 2005
Net income {loss) P28,055,657 (P175,766,114) P2,744,795
Weighted average number of issued and
subscribed shares 153,495,044,287 153,494,401,600 1,534,944,016
Earnings (loss) per share P0.0002 (£0.0011) P0.0018
There are no potential common stock issued during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 that could have
a dilutive effect on the income (loss) per share computation.
16.  Related Party Disclosures

The Parent Company, in the normal course of business, has transactions with related parties (companies with common
shareholders) which principalty consist of loans and cash advances. Interest income related to receivables from related
parties amounted 1o 3.0 mitlion in 2007, P4.2 million in 2006 and P5.1 million in 2005. Interest income related to
receivables from shareholders amounted te P0.3 million in 2007, P 1.3 million in 2006 and 4.4 million in 2005. Interest
expense related to advances from shareholders amounted to P0.8 million in 2007 and $3.0 million in 2006 and 2005.
Interest expense related to loans from associates amounted to P3.9 million in 2007, P3.5 million in 2006 and P6.3
million in 2005. Interest expense related to loans from related parties amounted to 11.3 million in 2007, P11.4 million
in 2006 and P28.3 million in 2005.

a. Amounts due from related parties are summarized as follows:

Advances to Accrued
Related Companies Interest Receivables

Relationship 2007 2006 2007 2006

Fil-Energy Corporation Under common control P4,753,762 P4,753,762 P16,166,435 P16,166,435

Qcean Composite Yacht, [nc. (OCYI) Under common control 4,500,000 4,500,000 2,955,344 2,955,344

VIMC Shareholder 1,503,135 1,397,559 1,549,169 1,575,077
Pacific Rim Export Holdings, Corp.

(Primex) Under common control 1,114,118 1,114,118 722,935 722,935

urMC Under common control - 27,669,463 - 29,256,449

Others 1,052,662 1,031,278 - -

12,923,677 40,466,180 21,393,883 50,676,240
Less allowance for doubtfu!
accounts 5,614,118 5,614,118 3,678,279 3,678,279

P7,309,559 £34,852,062 P17,715,604 P46,997,961

Management believes that the full amount of receivables from OCY1 and Primex are no longer collectible. Accordingly,
the Parent Company fully provided fot its total receivables from OCY! and Primex in 2002,

In August 2007, UPMC and the Parent Company entered into a Deed of Assignment of Receivables whereby, the
Parent Company agreed to convert all of its receivable from UPMC into shares of stock of the latter. Both parties
agreed that the number of common shares equivalent of such receivable is 64,603,898. At the time of conversion,
the carrying value of receivable from UPMC by Parent Company is P60.2 million. The Paremt Company classified the
shares of stock as an AFS investment.
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b. Amounts due to related companies are summarized as follows:

Advances from

Long-term debt related Companies
Relationship 2007 2006 2007 2006
PentaCapital Associate  P45,000,000 P25,000,000 P- -
Euronote Profits Lid. Under common control - - 6,530,553 25,740,750
APHC Under common control - - 6,154,022 6,619,275
Alakor Corporation Shareholder - - 43,199 43,199

1

Shareholders and others - 3,054,250 3,054,250
P45,000,000 P25,000,000 P15,782,024 P35,457,474

Loans and advances from related companies bear interest at 12% - 21% per annum.

The compensation of key management personnel are as follows:

Consolidated Entity
2007 2006
Short-term employee benefits P5,058,171 ?5,109,053
Post-employment benefits 16,708,114 13,360,580
P21,766,285 P18,469,633
17.  Share in Costs and Operating Expenses

Consolidated Entity
2007 2006 2005
Petroleum operations (Note 2) P117,595,090 P85,735,453 P39,190,852
Personnel 3,820,232 3,397,434 8,952,083
Outside services - - 3,316,407
Depletion and depreciation and amortization {Note 7} 794,531 578,056 2,388,662
P122,209,853 P£89.710,943 P53,848.004

18, Ceneral and Administrative Expenses

Consolidated Entity
2007 2006 2005
Personnel P11,453,116 P9,792,786 £9,325,981
Dues and subscriptions 3,569,011 1,943,983 1,758,587
Qutside services 3,435,928 3,458,656 2,824,104
Depletion and depreciation and amortization (Note 7} 2,869,048 1,711,251 2,032,491
Transportation and travel 2,664,362 2,424,009 1,171,731
Unilities 1,560,150 1,819,837 1,598,697
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 1,072,283 931,949 829,091
Taxes and licenses 901,450 B23,608 854,629
Supplies 718,252 358,522 1,020,562
Repairs and maintenance 440,630 1,825,623 190,711
Insurance 263,126 212,916 123,305
Advertising 236,678 32,499 43,225
Provision for doubtful accounts - 3,427,560 -
Others 3,703,437 1,112,366 1,280,712
P32,887,471 P29,875,565 P23,053,826

19. Pension Plan

The Parent Company has a defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all of its employees, which require
contributions to be made to separately administered funds.
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The following tables summarize the components of net pension expense recognized in the consolidated statements of
income, the funded status and amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets for the plan.

Net pension expense

2007 2006 2005
Current service cost P1,690,500 P651,026 P571,075
Interest cost 1,969,100 1,615,256 1,809,839
Expected return on plan assets (947,300) (882,961) (1,085,075)
Amortization of actuarial loss 716,100 - -
Net pension expense P3,428,400 P1,383,321 P1,295.839
Actual return on plan assets P747,300 P1,495,347 P1,244,357
Pension liability
2007 2006

Defined benefit obligation P27,749,400 £28,129,500
Fair value of plan assets 15,279,664 13,532,362

12,469,736 14,597,138
Unrecognized actuarial gains (8,998,200) (13,554,002)

P3,471,536 P1,043,136

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2007 2006
Balances at beginning of year P28,129,500 P11,537,548
Actuarial losses {gains) due to:
Change in assumptions (5,358,500} 12,124,848
Experience adjustmenits 1,318,800 2,200,822
Interest cost 1,969,100 1,615,256
Current service cost 1,690,500 651,026
Balances at end of year P27,749,400 P28,129,500
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
2007 2006
Balances at beginning of year P13,532,362 P11,037,015
Actual contributions 1,000,000 1,000,000
Expected return in plan assets 947,300 882,961
Actuarial gains (losses) {200,000) 612,386
Balances at end of year P15,279,662 P13,532,362

The major categorics of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

2007 2006
Fixed income securities 99.0% 98.0%
Deposits in banks 0.3% -%
Others 0.7% 2.0%
Total 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining pension liability for the Parent Company’s plans as of January 1 are
shown below:

2007 2006 2005
Discount rate 9% 14% 14%
Investment yield 5% 8% 8%
Salary increase 10% 10% 10%

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable
to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.
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20. Income Taxes

The details of current provision for income tax are as follows:

Consolidated
2007 2006 2005
MCIT P1,144,234 P1,302,294 P750,895
Final taxes 300,137 1,343,791 13,512
P1,444, 371 P2,646,085 P764,407

A reconciliation of provision for (benefit from) income tax computed using the statutory income tax rate to the provision

for income tax is as follows:

Consolidated
2007 2006 2005
Provision for {benefit from) income tax
computed at statutory tax rate P10,325,010 (P60,592,010}) P1,140,491
Additions to (reductions in) income tax resulting from:
Movements on temporary differences for
which no deferred tax assets were recognized 24,749,352 17,849,951 23,453,288
Equity in net earnings of associates (2,898,005) (2,028,928} (12,441,743}
Interest income subjected to final tax (10,749) (74,930} {21,958}
Dividend income (2,205) (6.878) (341)
Other non-taxable income (4,699,281) - -
Non-deductible interest expense 488,123 39,338 8,491
Loss on disposal of shares of stock - 68,201,000 -
Expired and applied NOLCO {26,107,225)  {20.645,588) (11,062,449)
Expired MCIT (400,649) (95,870) (311,371)
P1,444,371 P2,646,085 P764.407

Deferred income tax assets on the following items have not been recognized due to uncertainty that these will be recovered

through future operations:
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Consolidated Entity

2007 2006

Provision for probable losses P42,744,077 P42,085,331
NOLCO 32,758,966 58,866,191
Allowance for doubtful accounts 12,719,957 12,719,957
MCIT 3,197,423 2,453,838
Pension liability 3,471,536 1,043,136

As of December 31, 2007, NOLCO and MCIT that can be claimed as deduction from future taxable income or used as
deduction against future income tax liabilities, respectively, are as follows:

Year incurred Expiry date NOLCO MCIT
2005 2008 P32,758,966 P750,895
2006 2009 - 1,302,294
2007 2010 - 1,144,234

P32,758,966 P3,197,423

The movements in NOLCO and MCIT follow:

NOLCO 2007 2006
Balances at beginning of year P58,866,191 P117,853,585
Application (24,680,034) (15,808,073)
Expirations {1,427,191} (43,179,321)
Balances at end of year P32,758,966 P58,866,191
MCIT 2007 2006
Balances at beginning of year P2,453,838 P1,247,414
Additions 1,144,234 1,302,294
Expiration {400,649) (95,870)
Balances at end of year P3,197,423 P2,453,838
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21.  Financial Instruments
Fair Values of Financial [nstruments
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities:
Consolidated Entity
2007 2006
Fair Carrying Fair Carrying
values values values values
FINANCIAL ASSETS:
Cash P3,825,792 P3,825,792 P5,239,364 P5,239,364
Loans and receivables:
Accounts with contract operators 34,527,270 34,527,270 23,726,923 23,726,923
Accrued interest receivables 17,715,604 17,715,604 43,570,401 43,570,401
Dividends receivable 2,250,000 2,250,000 2,250,000 2,250,000
Advances to officers and employees 1,604,305 1,604,305 1,849,050 1,849,050
Accounts with partners 679,193 679,193 1,842,599 1,842,599
Others 658,814 658,814 5,370,650 5,370,650
Advances to related companies 7,309,559 7,309,559 34,852,062 34,852,062
AFS investment:
Quoted 115,251,870 115,251,870 115,337,986 115,337,986
Unquoted 10,877,814 10,877,814 12,803,893 12,803,893
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt, current portion 88,724,515 88,724,515 80,724,515 80,724,515
Trade and other payables:
Trade 10,497,963 10,497,963 14,204,857 14,204,857
Accrued interest 7,881,615 7,881,615 14,913,802 14,913,802
Accounts with partners 326,885 326,885 1,099,343 1,099,343
Others 2,650,747 2,650,747 778,334 778,334
Advances from related companies 15,782,024 15,782,024 35,457,474 35,457,474
Dividends payable 5,014,873 5,014,873 5,013,853 5,013,853
Subscriptions payable 2,069,232 2,069,232 1,652,742 1,652,742
The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values because of their short-term nature.
Quoted AFS investments are carried at fair value based on the quoted values of the securities.
22. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise mainly of cash, receivables, advances to/from related companies,
AFS investments, trade and other payables, long-term debt, subscriptions payable and dividends payable. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to provide financing for the Group’s operations and capital intensive profects.

The BOD is mainly responsible for the overall risk management approach and for the appraval of risk strategies and
principles of the Group.

Financial Risks

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit and concentration risks, liquidity risk, and
market risks. The market risks exposure of the Group can be further classified to foreign currency risk, equity price risk,
and commodity price risk. The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing some of these risks and they are
summarized as follows:

Credit and concentration rists

Credit risk is such risk where the Group could incur a loss if its counterparties fail 1o discharge their contractual obligations,
although the Group trades only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. As of December 31, 2007, all of the 5C 14
consortium’s annual petroleum products sales are to Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation (PSPC), and 100% of the
outstanding trade receivables are from the $C 14 consortium. At present, the SC 14 consortium has a supply agreement
with PSPC, assuring PSPC with sale of the SC 14 consortium’s petroleum products. This agreement had been renewed
every year.
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With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which comprise of cash and AFS investments,
the Group's exposure 1o ¢redit risk could arise from default of the counterparty, having a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amount of these instruments, gross of any collaterals and credit enhancements. The table below summarizes the
Group’s exposure 1o credit risk for the components of the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2007

Cash P3,825,792
Receivables:
Accounts with contract operators 34,527,270
Accrued interest 17,715,604
Dividends 2,250,000
Advances to officers and employees 1,604,305
Accounts with partners 679,193
Others 658,814
Advances to related companies 7,309,559
AFS investments:
Quoted 115,251,870
Unquoted 10,877,814
Gross maximum credit risk exposure £194,700,221

The table below shows the credit quality of the Group's financial assets by class as of December 31, 2007 based on the
Group's credit evaluation process:

Neither past due nor impaired

High Grade  Standard Grade Impaired Total
Cash P3,825,792 P- P- P3,825,792
Receivables:
Accounts with contract operators 34,527,270 - - 34,527,270
Accrued interest - 17,715,604 3,678,279 21,393,883
Dividends 2,250,000 - - 2,250,000
Advances to officers and employees 1,604,305 - - 1,604,305
Accounts with partners 679.193 - - 679,193
Others 658,814 - 3,427,560 4,086,374
Advances 1o related companies - 7,309,559 5,614,118 12,923,677
AFS investments:
Quoted 115,251,870 - - 115,251,870
Ungquoted 10,877,814 - - 10,877,814
Total 169,675,058 P25,025,163  P12,719,957 P207.420,178

High grade credit quality financial assets pertain to financial assets with insignificant risk of default based on historical
experience and/or counterparty credit standing. Standard grade credit quality financial assets are those assets with history
of default but cannot be deemed uncollectible because it arises from related companies for which there is a common
control.

The Group has no past due but not impaired financial assets as of December 31, 2007.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is such risk where the Group becomes unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under
normal and stress circumstances. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of bank loans and operating cash flows. The Group addresses liquidity concerns primarily
through cash flows from operations and short-term borrowings.

All of the Parent Company's financial liabilities including future interest will fall due within one year except for advances
from related companies which are currently demandable.

Market risks

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is such risk that the value of the Group's financial instruments diminish due to unfavorable changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Parent Company’s transactional currency exposures arise from sales in currencies other
than its functional currency. All of the Parent Company's share in petroleumn operations revenue are denominated in US
Dollar. Likewise, the Parent Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from its US Dollar-denominarted trade
receivables.

The Philodrill Corporation

46 ANNUAL REFORT 2007




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Parent Company's trade receivable which is included in “Accounts with contract operators” is significantly exposed in
foreign currency risk, As of December 31, 2007, this amounted to US$0.8 million which is equivalent to £32.9 million.

The following table summarizes the impact on the consolidated income before tax of reasonably possible changes in the
exchange rates of US Dollar against the Peso:

USD Appreciate/{ Depreciate) Effect on income before income tax
1% P328,873
{1%) (328,873)

There is no other impact on the Group's equity other than those affecting profit and loss.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is such risk where the fair values of investments in quoted equity securities could decrease as a result of
changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of individual stocks. The Group is exposed to equity securities price
risk because of investments held by the Parent Company, which are classified in the consclidated balance sheets as AFS
investments.

The effect on equity, as a result of a possible change in the fair value of equity instruments held as AFS investments as at
December 31, 2007, that could be brought by changes in equity indices, with all other variables held constant, are as follows:

Change in quoted prices of investments

carried at fair value Effect on equity
Increase by 10% 11,525,187
Increase by 5% 5,762,594
Decrease by 10% (11,525,187}
Decrease by 5% (5.762,594)

The impact on the Group's equity excludes the impact on transactions affecting profit or loss.

Commodity price risk

The Parent Company's revenues are based on international commadity quotations (i.e., primarily on the average Dubai
oil prices} over which the Parent Company has no significant influence or control. This exposes the Parent Company’s
results of operations to commodity price volatilities that may significantly impact its cash inflows.

The following table below shows the effect on income before income tax of a reasonably possible change in the price
of oil:

Effect on income

Change in oil prices before tax
Increase by 10% P17,488,896
Decrease by 10% (17,488.896)

The impact on the Group’s equity excludes the impact on transactions affecting profit or loss.

23.

Capital Management

The Group maintains a capital base to cover risks inherent in the business. The primary objective of the Group's capital
management is o oplimize the use and earnings potential of the Group’s resources, ensuring that the Group complies
with externally imposed capiial requirements, if any, and considering changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the Group's activities. No significant changes have been made in the objectives, policies and processes
of the Group from the previous years.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table summarizes the total capital considered by the Group:

2007 2006
Capital stock P1,534,132,373 P1,533,786,337
Additional paid-in capital 1,624,012 1,624,012
Unrealized valuation losses on AFS investments (87.875.464) (82.807,262)
Deficit (49,541,472) (77,597.129)

P1,398,339,449

P1.375,005,958

24, Supplemental Information on Statements of Cash Flows

The principal non-cash activities are as follows:

a. Conversion of UPMC's receivables aggregating to P60.2 million to AFS investments of which the fair value amounted

to 248.4 million.

b. Settlement of advances to related parties amounting P40.7 million in exchange for the Parent Company’s own shares

in 2006.
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